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Report of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Annual Performance for the Year 2007
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With the Company’s strong fundamental and with
the results of the Company business restructuring in
2005 to invest in Information Technology as its core
business, the operational results of the Company
progressed gradually since year 2006. A total of 14.2
million Baht dividend was paid for its 2006 operational
results to the shareholders at 0.10 Baht per share.

In 2007, besides of the fact that the Thai economy has
been unstable, the Company and its subsidiary still
maintained its market share and continuously produced
reasonable results. The consolidated financial
performance can be highlighted with a total revenues of
1,419.87 million Baht, 46.32 million Baht in profit
before paid interest and corporate income tax and the net
profit in the amount of 18.78 million Baht.

As at 31 December 2007, the Company and its
subsidiary recorded the total assets in the amount of
732.10 million Baht, the total debts of 535.52 million
Baht and the shareholders’ equity in the amount of
196.58 million Baht.

The Company will still focus to invest in the

Annual Report 2007
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Information Technology Business with a policy to
extend its investment to other related and supporting
businesses to escalate its continuous growth potentials.
The Company will continue to strengthen and add value
to its subsidiary’s business and financial structure to
ensure return on investment.

The Board of Directors would like to take this
opportunity to thank shareholders, clients, employees
and other parties for the trust and confidence and

continuous support to the Company.

The Board of Directors
PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

LIMITED
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General Information
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FOUITHEN

Name of Listed Company
@UNZUDTEN

Company Registration Number

szangsne
Type of Business

44
ADIUNAN

Head Office

TnsAns
Telephone
Tnsens
Facimile
Homepage

NN U
Registered Capital
Snujuaniniesndmiend

Paid-up Capital

e wlszdil 2550

A o aa J A o w
PTHN WIHes malulad 100 (MNFY)
Premier Technology Public Company Limited
0107535000320 (13 VN 65)

0107535000320 (Originally Bor Mor Jor 65)

(

S

auiugsnaswnisamulugsnama Tuladasaumst

Investment in Information Technology Business

= Aaa ¢ o s AaAa
munl WiLMﬂiﬂﬂﬁLﬂ@Li‘ﬂﬂ'Iiﬂ HOYWIT LN 2

nuuﬁ%‘uﬂ?uﬂ{ HUNHUO WO Y lwalsend
ATUNNWUIUAT 10250

One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet,

Bangkok 10250

0-2301-1150

0-2301-1150
0-2301-1199
0-2301-1199
www.Premier-Technology.co.th

142,440,489 170
142,440,489 Baht
141,944,471 Yu

141,944,471 Shares
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Juristic Persons which the Company holding its share exceeding 10 percent

A Ao
FOUIHN
Juristic Person

S a W
RUNSIVIUUTEN

Company Registration number

szangsne

Type of Business

4
BORIGIGE!

Head Office

Tnsdwi

Telephone

Tnsas

Facimile

NN U

Registered Capital
Snowfuaigfieensimhends
Paid-up Capital
fnnuuiusindend

The Company Shareholding
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RAANE
L)

A
Qe

wnsouaz 10 ¥yl

3

@

Ao ) a sa & do
UIHN ﬂ"lﬁﬂﬂi ADUNIUND T FHRNET 1NA
Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd.
0105529045455 (101 4548/2529)

0105529045455 (Originally 4548/2529)

9q Y a = o @ a
Aliusn1sma Tulagas aumadms ugsnauuuas Y

999 (Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider)

Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider

A aa J J aa Jd
myn 1 WiWesneseosnthsa seansiies 2

DUUATUATUNT LM UB IR ATz
ATUNWUIUAT 10250

One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet,
Bangkok 10250

0-2684-8484

0-2684-8484

0-2677-3500 — 2

0-2677-3500 -2

30,000,000 1N

30,000,000 Baht

300,000 #u

300,000 Shares

239,995 Hju

239,995 Shares
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Reference

(1) Share Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
Beside Queen Sirikit Nation Convention Center, 4,
7" Floor, Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok,
10110

Tel. 0-2229-2800, Fax.0-2359-1259

Call Center : 0-2229-2888

Website : http://www.tsd.co.th

E-mail : contact.tsd@set.or.th

(2) Debenture Holders’ Re presentations

-None -

(3) Auditors

Miss Siraporn Ouaanunkun

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No.3844 or
Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930 or
Miss Tipawan Nananuwat

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3459

Emst & Yong Office Limited
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91A151AA AT FU 33 18UN 193/136-137

DUUTBANHNAR 11 ATANNA 10110

TnsAwd 0-2264-0777,0-2261-9190

Tnsens 0-2264-0789 - 90, 0-2661-9192

(4) MSammamsiay

- aidi -

(5) M3 nmnngrane
- aidi -

y A
(6) M3 03 effdamsmelidaImsdams

o ' Y a Y o =2 a
- dyanndnuimsmaglaanlsnugine
VSN wIes Arsuunifilaoa $1a
d‘ axn 4 4 =4
U 1 wsWesaesulesnihsn woansies 2
AUUATUASUNS LUK WD

WALTEIA NTINNA 10250
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33" Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex,
193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

Tel. 0-2264-0777,02661-9190

Fax. 0-2264-0789-90, 0-2661-9192

(4) Financial Advisors

- None -

(5) Legal Advisors

- None -

(6) Advisor or Manager under Management Contact

- Business Management and Consulting Contract :
Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon,

Prawet, Bangkok 10250
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Financial Summary
(g : uN)

(Unit: Million Baht)

2550/2007 | 2549/2006 | 2548/2005

Y =)
VDNAMNNITINY

Financial Information

FuUnswdiam 732.10 836.69 542.56
Total Assets
NHAUTIN 535.52 650.62 42829

Total Liabilities

dauv oo i 196.58 186.07 114.26

Total Shareholders’ Equity

58Nz 1,399.18 1,440.08 1,321.26

Sales and Services Revenues

51018370 1,419.87 1,532.67 1,402.36

Total Revenues

lsaudu 370.76 330.05 294.45

Gross Profit

ils @ranw) angsnang 18.78 64.63 29.08

Net Income (Loss) from Normal Operation

115910015150 T A3 9er$ 19w - - 82.44

Gain on Debt Restucturing

ils (vian) gns 18.78 64.63 111.52

Net Income (Loss)

sreulsedit 2550 7 Annual Report 2007
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Financial Summary (Continued)

[
i

VA

(
o

S N

(e :

%
MULIN)

(Unit: Million Baht)

2550/2007 2549/2006 2548/2005
BN ITIUNMIM I Y
Financial Ratio
sasrilsvudu (%) 26.50 22.92 22.39
Gross Profit Margin
gasmlsnngsnananoselasm (%) 1.32 422 207
Net Profit Margin from Normal Operation
gasmlsqniaeitelasin (%) 1.32 422 7.95
Net Profit Margin
gasmano uuMUIINgInalnAnoduvenony (%) 9.82 43.04 45.60
Return on Equity from Normal Operation
83 IWAAD DLUNUA B AIUYD FD B 1U (%) 9.82 43.04 174.88
Return on Equity
ga3 AR UINUIINgI NN Ade AUNTNdT N (%) 2.39 9.37 4.57
Return on Total Assets from Normal Operation
SAT WA UINUA D AUNTNET I (%) 239 937 17.53
Return on Total Assets
s @) angInvlndaequ Um) 0.13 0.46 0.24
Net Income (Loss) from Normal Operation per Share (Baht)
11501055y TAs sadraniine fu (L) - - 0.66
Gain on Debt Restucturing per Share (Baht)
ils (V19N qw%daﬁu () 0.13 046 0.90
Net Income (Loss) per Share (Baht)
Ruiluwaaoiu (1) 0.10 - -
Dividends per Share (Baht)
yasawiyFaoqu (Um) 1.38 131 0.92
Book Value per Share (Baht)
e Uz 2550 8 Annual Report 2007
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Nature of Business Operation

a o ax g A o w [ %
VIEN W3Wes maTulad 108 Wii1rw) Jagiiv
Uszaouginsasulugsnama Tulades awmeilu

@

a a o F) a d Aa
ganonan lasaauluuisn ardiTis nounumes e
< do o & o a a  d Jq ¥ a a
wud Pine FduiugsnutufldusnismaTulad
NI TUNATIHTUFINVUVUATUINDS (Total Enterprise
Solution and Service Provider) 151528 U g3 A 911114
I ' o @ dy
ponilu2 nguwdane Al
' a v J d d d d ¢ Y '
1. nguMansaMasaIsNIs naz sevlduas laun

@ J

a a o 4
waanunma luladeasaume (IT Products) HAAN N
v ada A . . a o 4 4 4

aaNAY (Multimedia Products) #aananae Waas
FEUVUTMIVOYALAZTZULNUABUNILADS (System
and Data Management Software) 1@ ¢ R

4 do a a 4
odusdusaglszuunugINILaz T HI503ANS

(Application Software)

@

2. nguMIu3ms Usznounie n15UTNs 51395011
a 2 o =) =
waanaana luladars aumas 183 (Annual
Maintenance Services) N1TUTNITINTLUY NS
Wnovusy uaz1fif1U5 A1 (Training & Consulting
a 4 o
Services) N1TUINITBINYGD T (Outsourcing Services)

HAZMTUTANTAIND U (Other Services)

s1enuilszdil 2550

The Company’s core business is currently to investin

the Information Technology Business by investing in
Datapro Computer Systems Co. Ltd.,a Total Enterprise
Solution and Service Provider. The Company’s business

operations are divided into two main groups:

1. Hardware and Software Product Group — The
products in this group include IT, multimedia, system&

data management software, and application software.

2. Service Group — The services provided include
annual maintenance, training and consulting, outsourcing

and others.

Annual Report 2007
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@

=S dl L} =S dy
3N Ui

The revenue structure of

[
k&

0

subsidiary over the past 3 years is shown below:

e : 41N

Unit : Million Baht

HAA A (Product) Autiun1s | % nisderu|  2550/2007 2549/2006 2548/2005
Tao vowsim | 10ld [ % | swld | % | swld
Operated % of Revenue Revenue Revenue
By Company
Shareholding
naunanfaE/ USasma Tuladas aume
IT Product/Service Group
1. nquraasuaiensansiazse vdag DCS 80.00 1,092 78.1 1,157 803 907| 68.7
Hardware and Software Product Group
2. ﬂqliJﬂﬁ‘]J?ﬂTi DCS 80.00 3071 21.9 283 19.7 2721 20.6
Service Group
souse ldiamavengundasant /013 1,399]100.0 1,440(100.0 1,179] 89.3
vImsma Tulagensauma
Total IT Product/Service Group Revenue
nauranase i nieluthy PCE* - - - - - 49
Home Electrical Appliance Manufacturing
Group
nauimthensedllineluthumzgsio | pHA® . - . - - 93
Distributor of Home and Business Electrical
Appliance Group
iﬂu%ﬂﬁuﬂ 1,399]100.0 1,440]100.0 1,321(100.0
Total Revenues
(RN Notes
1) DCS = UsEN i1 nouiwmes Tadud 1) DCS = Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd.
SRhL)

2) * ysEms e uasueen liliiie Tuh 1 funawy

2548

voaUTENd nee 1
a o A JdAaAa o w
- PCE = 151M w3 Wes @9 9104

4

a o d o o
- PHA = UTEM WSiles 1oy o nna1guaus 310

o 9/ 1 I Xl
W PCE nay PHA luligueziluusindes

1o ulsedil 2550

Company’s subsidiaries.

- PCE

- PHA

10

Premier CE Company Limited

2) * The Company sold its investment capital on 1

December 2005. As a result, PCE and PHA are no longer the

= Premier Home Appliance Company Limited

Annual Report 2007
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w9 @15 UMINIA (SIPA, Software Industry Promotion
Agency) Ho@oulinay 2550 uazlsulganuan lu
A a Y S = 1
woulnueu2550 Tamanisaiin 1 2550 yasn
aarama Tuladmsaumalagsdn 226,035 414N
sznoudie asads 71,962 d1uun seuduas
62,174 11NN 1AZN1TUTNT 14,686 411N 1A e
1Y a ~ I 1A
9931M15AuTa 11.2% 3101 2549 mawnsuilungum
= 1 1 9 9 o 4 4 4
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As the core business of the Company and its
subsidiary is being a Total Enterprise Solution Provider,
competitive conditions and provision of products and

service is as follows:

Competitive conditions within the industry

The trend of information technology industry stillhas
a continuous growth rate. For the news release on the
survey of computer software in Thailand for the year
2007, by the Software Industry Promotion Agency
(Public Organization) (SIPA) in March 2007, and
revised in June 2007, the anticipation in 2007, for the
value of the information technology market is 226,035
million Baht, which is comprised of hardware of 71,962
million Baht, software of 62,174 million Baht, and
services of 14,686 million Baht, with the growth rate of
11.2% from the year 2006. Private Sector is the group
which has highest expenses on hardware, software, and
services for the year 2006, which account for 71%. The
private sector is the customer group and target group of
the Company.

Although the trend of the technology market has the
continuous growth rate, the Company is still in the
competitive circumstance at all times with the business
operators both inside the country and abroad. Therefore,
the Company differentiate itself continuously from other
business operators. Some of the business operators
engage in either hardware software, or services because
there are limitations for each of them. Therefore, the
Company creates different points so that it will be a
“Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider” with
the best quality for the customers continuously to cover
all hardware, software, and services. In addition, to

anticipate the trend of future technology is important for

competition to prepare to provide total and continuous

1o ulsedil 2550
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complete services to the customers, and on time to meet
the changes and the needs in the businesses of the
customers, with the efficient, continuously trained, and
much experienced staff. Therefore, the total information
technology service is the important strategy to be the

leader in this aspect.

Provision of products and service
Because the Company is the total information
technology service provider, the staff who provide
services are very important. The Company has invested
to create and keep certificate staff by training both inside
and outside of the organization, built computer center
with state of the art equipment continuously to train and
develop working system for provision of service to
customers. In addition, the Company hire the experts in
new technology to transfer knowledge and expertise to
the staff of the company in order to build confidence to
customers who use service of the Company.

The Company is a direct importer and a distributor of
various well-known products such as IBM, Hewlett-
Packard, Cisco, Sanyo, Canon, ORACLE, Information
Builders, SAP, and many others. Products are imported
from Japan, U.S.A., France and Great Britain. In
addition, in order to meet with the changes in technology
and the need of the customers, the Company will procure
more new products at all times. In the year 2007, the
Company procure more products to distribute, which is
comprised of SOA, RFID, and products on internet
infrastructure, in addition to the old products for many
kinds, business intelligence software package, business

efficiency software package, and enterprise content

management solution, etc.

1o ulsedil 2550

12

Annual Report 2007




urdn waidas nalulad A0 (WKL) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

Ysza@nsnIne 9 ﬁ' N3 (Corporate Performance
Management) HAZNAASURTLUUAMTUTMITIO N AT

P . . <
99ANT (Enterprise Content Management Solution) fh
Y
au

A ) ) A o ¢ =
meMIaaa N NIINHAad A Tulad
d' a o Y a :/’ a v A
asaumanuTEnlEuTnstiu viEninisaanulu
o s @ A a A qyu v
msanngenansszgnamuaumie nasando g
@, Y vy v 4 o
AANNADINITVBIgNAT Uszneuate weWauds
seuumbdimsudseineIne (Thailand Tax
Localization System for JD Edwards EnterpriseOne &
o 4 < o [
World), oW dursszvmsadinsvilszimelne
(Cheque Control System for JD Edwards EnterpriseOne
o o a A o [
& World), sondin3sruutudeudmsvdlszmea Tne
(Thailand Payroll Tax Localization for PeopleSoft
Enterprise & JD Edwards EnterpriseOne), ¢ ® Wdauas
sTAmTgiveyamoatiuayun1sda dulive g
VIN15§3 N9 15905 1 (HMAA, Hotel Management
14 4 a
Analytic Application,), FOWAUITTZUVUNITUTHS
4
19N d@15039AN 3 (Electronic Document Warehouse
Management) Haz g0 @I UUNITUTHS
¥ o JdY A 9 9 o
ANNAUWUTHIENTOIUITUNTQIA qUAIN (PRM,
Patient Relationship Management)
9 '

wenInil meaNuazadnlunis Wusmsiunqu
gaamnssumaluladiuge uiEn'ld Wwanuoy
@ [l a Y o 7 o <
#1061953N 9 “FASTech” adesoWdulIsdniagil
SYUVNUEIND SAP All-in-One Taoiuilofud1v e g

A o P Y g
nanaarAFeINY U g a a N sI Nl uag
mun1saaulususewinuSEneade W (Insuaud)
9

#1a UuuudI0619 “FASTech” Tigniiansaiiu

9
AMMFA UMY gInIMe la AN o UN 1T

(3

Y
VUTN1TAAAY (Implementation) F1HIVILILIAINT

Y 4
@ @

ARITHU mm“lmnm"lmuwa ADULUNUIINNIT

an

3)

299 U(ROL, Return of Investment) i’JﬂL’i’Jﬂ "ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ

upitan 1)

[
\lelé

\/\

In order to add value from the information
technology products which the Company provides
services, the Company invests in development of
application software in order to be in accordance withthe
need of the customers, which is comprised of the
Thailand Tax Localization System for JD Edwards
EnterpriseOne & World, Cheque Control System for JD
Edwards EnterpriseOne and World, Thailand Payroll Tax
Localization for PeopleSoft Enterprise and JD Edwards
EnterpriseOne, and Hotel Management Analytic
Application (HMAA), Electronic Document Warehouse
and Patient

Management Relationship

Management(PRM).

In additional, to provide convenience in provision of
service to the group of high-technology industry, the
Company has developed business model "FASTech" by
the enterprise resource planning software package SAP
All-in-One which the Company received suggestionfiom
experts engage in this industry and passed the
examination for certification from SAP (Thailand)
Limited. From this model, the customers can see all of
its business operation before implementation, and hasthe

short period and fast implementation for customers to

receive return on investment (ROJ).
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Major external and internal factors that may have
affected the Company’s operations can be summarized
as follows:

1. Risk from Technological Changes

Information Technology has developed and changed
rapidly and continuously. Early 2007, the trend of
information technology comprised of SaaS (Software as
a Service)) SOA (Service Oriented Architecture),
Wireless (WiFi, WiMax), Web 2.0, etc. Because the
Company is the Total Enterprise Solution and Service
Provider, the Company anticipates the risk in
procurement of hardware and software which is current,
meets the change of technology, and is suitable for the
requirements of its customers. Therefore, the Company
arranged to have its personnel study the changes in order
to make them technology experts at all times, including
to take examinations to obtain certificates to meet with
current technology. This will allow the Company to

provide appropriate services and to add value for the

customer from the current technology.
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2. Risk from Competition

The Company is a dealer of hardware and software
products for major vendors who continue to increase the
number of their resellers in order to maintain and win
more market share. This has resulted in serious
competition among business operators in the same
industry and, most importantly, decreased profit. In
order to reduce this risk and differentiate itself fromother
dealers, the Company has shifted its business from being
just a hardware and software product dealer to a Total
Enterprise Solution and Service Provider and to adjust
the service provision part to expand continuously in
order to differentiate the company from other dealers.
This involves:

® Enhance product lines to cover customer
enterprise-wide requirements in each sector sto
meet current technology.
Developing application software and business
intelligence software to add value consistent with
the needs of businesses in Thailand. Examples ae
tax, cheque and payroll system software solutions
which interface with ERP software, and analytical
software which supports hotel and hospital
management decisions.
Providing a comprehensive information technology
outsourcing service which includes hardware,
software and services for those customers who do

not wish to manage their own information

technology.

3. Risk from Dependency on Human Resources
Human resources are an essential factor in operating

an information technology business. Professionalswith
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specialized knowledge and expertise are needed to
provide consultancy and develop successful businessin
order to meet with the changes in information
technology, which is continuous at all times as statedin
Clause 1, and the high competition, as stated in Clause2,
which are the important matters that the Company pays
much attention to. Hence, the Company’s policy is to
give priority to personnel management and to provide
stable career paths. It regularly organizes training and
seminar to develop its staff’s skills and potential. In
order to maintain good morale and retain its personnel,
the Company has set appropriate remuneration plans
which are competitive with other companies in the same
industry. In addition, it has created a pleasant working
environment and appropriate welfare offerings, as well
as fostering good relationships with and between its

employees.

4. Risk from Dependency on Few Vendors

In its current stage of development, the Company
continues to be a dealer of major vendors of mini-
computers, open system computers and servers. In the
future, changes in these vendors’ businesses or sales
policies may have an impact on the Company. The
Company realizes this risk and has therefore expanded
its business by seeking hardware products from other
vendors. It has also increased the variety of hardware
products by becoming a dealer of network systems and
multimedia products. In addition to hardware products,
the Company is a dealer of various application software
products including information technology management,
database system, application program development, data
back-up and recovery, internet infrastructure, Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) and Business Intelligence (BI)

software.
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For year 2007, the Company had more alliance in the
RFID (Radio Frequency Identification) products, SOA,
internet infrastructure, business intelligence, and others.
At present, the Company is a distributor of hardware and
software products for various major vendors such as
IBM, Hewlett-Packard, Cisco Systems, SANYO, Canon,
Hitachi, ORACLE, Microsoft, SAP and Information
Builders. This has greatly reduced its dependency on

products from a few vendors.

5. Risk from Declining Economy

Because the customers of the Company are private
organizations which as affected from declining economy.
Investments in new business in Thailand were slow
down. Some were changed to invest in other countries
such or Vietnam, etc. This reduced the opportunity of
the Company to increase new customers.

Therefore, the Company emphasized on the
maintenance of the information technology systems of
the old customers to be in accordance and suitable with
the need of the organization, according to the changes of
technology. In addition, the Company emphasized the
cooperation with foreign organization in order to provide

services in development of specific works such as the

computer graphics development, etc.
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1. Shareholders

1.1 A groupof 10 shareholders hold the largest

propottion of shares

List of the top 10 shareholders whose names

appeared in the Register of Shareholders as of December

28,2007 are shown in the table below:

Fo NI % MINOHY
Name Number of Shares % of share holding
1. waduanng WIATI 84272215 5937
Mrs. Vimolthip Phongsathorn
- W Juanng NIATT 64,259,176
Mrs. Vimolthip Phongsathorn
- WY TS WIADT 40
Mr. Vichien Phongsathom
- UTEN @S Un 03 LA U 109 20,012,999
Seri Center Management Co., Ltd.
zmﬂafmﬁ' ........................ Wmﬁ ........................................................................................ 11’341,998 .................... 799 ..................
Mr. Viwat Phongsathom
3mmn%aﬁmﬁ ............. ﬂﬂgunmﬁﬂﬁ; 5’180’690 .................... 365 ..................
Miss Chadarat Korintarasak
4mq‘§5mia‘j,’ﬁmwﬁ 4’604,336 ..................... 324 .................
Mrs. Jiraporn Nuangplee
5mﬂ§u% ........................... ﬂ‘r‘mﬁuﬁ’mj 3’757,297 .................... 265 ..................
Mr. Sinchai Taveeporntanapat
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Fo Ui % MINOHY
Name Number of Shares % of share holding
6. VSTMWIHESBUADS INTF 10 a (WHFY) 1,601.454 1.13
Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited
7. untezia AT UIaA 1,200,000 0.85
Mrs. Piyajit Srinuandee
8mmnﬁmﬁ ................... ﬂ%‘ﬂum ........................................................................................ 1015000 072 ..................
Miss Somporn Sritumma
9U§ﬁw‘lmm§u‘§ﬁm{mﬁ‘ﬂ .................................................................................................... 734080 .................... 052 ..................
Thai NVDR Company limited
10mgqﬂmfg ........................... ﬁguu«”m{m‘f ............................................................................ 666600 .................... 047 ..................
Mr. Chamnan Jiammahasub
sangaevusialvg 114,373,670 80.58
Total
wneme : S Tuddeduiinetestunwmsentiydandnninduazaaandnnng w.e.2535 11031258
Note Number of shares, include the shareholders under the Securities and Exchange Act 2535 Section258

1.2 A group of major shareholders are related to

those who take part in managing the Company:

Fo Uszneugsfodszan uﬂﬂa?'u?;mim Qi
Name Type of Business Related Person
Operated
I waduafing  weAss 17 10 WO NToT NIATS
Mrs. Vimolthip ~ Phongsathom - fhalse unssunig
Husband is Mr. Vichien
Phongsathorn, Chairman.
zmﬂ’r}‘j@]ﬁ ............... Wqﬁﬁ ..................................................................................... ﬁmﬂﬁ@mﬂfj@ﬂgwqﬁﬁ ................
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn - s Munssunig
Elder Brother is Mr. Vichien
Phongsathorn, Chairman.
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2. Management

2.1 Management Structure

The Company has two sets of directors — the
Company’s Board of Directors and Audit Committee.
Following are details of the two sets of directors:

2.1.1 Board of Directors
As at December 31,2007 the Company’s Board

of Directors consists of 8 directors as follows:

1. MeIFes NGbiks Usesunssunis

Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn Chairman

zum%%mﬁ .............................. Wqﬁm .................................................. mmﬂmmgmmﬂﬁéﬁﬂmj ..................................................
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn Director and Managing Director

3mm“ﬁng’ ........................ Lﬁfm 5'315 mj ....................................... ﬂﬁ umﬁ ...........................................................................................
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj Director

4mﬂqj mg“ ............................ Umﬂﬁ’mu ............................................. ﬂij Nmﬁ ...........................................................................................
Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana Director

Smmﬁcm 5ﬁu ..................... ﬁ’u Eu ﬁmﬁ’ ...................................... ﬂﬁ Nmﬁgﬁjg ................................................................................
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong Independent Director

61“8@@1] ................................ Gmam u u ﬁ' .......................................... ﬂﬁ mﬁgmg u a gﬂigm u ﬂ ﬁnmmjnﬁau ...................
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee

7mﬂqm ﬂ ............................... ﬁ’mug‘qmma ..................................... ﬂﬁ ijgﬁjg u a gﬂﬁumimj ﬁ]ﬁ m_, ...................................
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul Independent Director and Audit Committee

8mm‘]"§ﬂ 1 .............................. “lmmﬂﬁ ﬁf ......................................... ﬂﬁ uﬂﬁgﬁjg u a gﬂjﬁlmjmj ﬁm mJ ...................................
Mr. Katiya Greigamn Independent Director and Audit Committee
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Mrs. Suchada Samaisut acts as Secretary to the Board of
Directors

Scope of Authorities and Duties of the Board of
Directors

1. Manage the Company according to the laws,
objectives and articles of association as well as the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, except for those
matters requiring approval of the shareholders’ meeting
before implementation. Examples are matters that need
the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting as specified
by the law, related transactions, and purchase and saleof
major assets as specified by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand or other government units.

2. Assign one or more of the directors or other peopleto

act on their behalf.

3. Appoint the Audit Committee Directors and other
committees.
4. Review and give consent to important matters such
as policies, plans and budgets, management structure,
management authority and any transactions specified by
the Stock Exchange of Thailand or the laws.
5. Supervise the management’s operations to make sure
they follow the approved policies, plans and budget.

In 2007, the Board of Directors convened a total of 4
meetings and the record of Directors’ attendance is

summarized as follows:

INHINAUSNIIUNT

Director’s Name

marsamszgn/

m3dszyunariug (n39)

Attendance / Total Meetings

1. welFes WAATT 4/4
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn
2. weand NPT 4/4
Mr. Viwat Phongsathom
5101 uls231l 2550 2 Annual Report 2007
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Director’s Name miilsm;uﬁ”’muﬂ (ﬂ%ﬂ)
Attendance / Total Meetings
3. WeAing Bougalsa 3/4
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj
4mﬂqﬂmumﬂg@m ................................................................ 4/4 .....................................
Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana
Smﬂﬂ§wﬁﬁﬁﬁ’u§ﬂﬁmf{ ......................................................... 3/4 .....................................
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
6mﬂqmm§muuﬁ ............................................................ 4/4 .....................................
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
7mﬂqqﬂa%@mﬂqmma ........................................................ 4/4 .....................................
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
8mﬂ%m“1mmmﬁ ............................................................ 4/4 .....................................
Mr. Katiya Greigarn

AuznssuMIuIEnyaihgtiulsenoudonssuny

a3z 4 Muilszneuae

The present Company’s Board of Directors consistsof

4 independent directors.

1. gAY
Mr. Udom
2 .......... s~
Mr. Suchai
3 .......... e
Mr. Katiya
4 .......... O
Mr. Paritud

FIALTUUR
Chatiyanont
IUAgIUINA
Vatanatrinakul
Tnsae
Greigarn
Wugussesn

Bhandhubanyong

Smsunailun1sfaidennTsuni1s s asgiiu
viEninsanquanddawulovieiisimualas
AMLNTIUNTAIA IS ANTNILATARIANS AN WAL
Wszmalne daunszinunisas s ls3ansa 1w i

Y 1 k4 v Y ad Y
VlﬂﬂaWﬂvlﬂluﬁ?TBZ.Z IENIIUAIAINITINNIILUAS

Y a 9/
NUIHIT 11U 39

For the independent director selection criteria, the
Company considers the qualifications according to the
policy set by the Security Exchange Commission andthe
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The nominating procedure
is practiced as mentioned in Clause 2.2 — Criteria for

Appointing Directors and Managements page 39.
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The Company has specified the definition of
independent directors as follows:
1. Holding shares representing not more than 5% of
shares with voting rights of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies or any
juristic persons with a potential conflict of interest.
2. Not being an employee, staff member or salaried
advisor or controlling person of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies or any
juristic person with a potential conflict of interest.
3. Not being a person who has a blood or legally
registered relationship in the form of fatherhood,
motherhood, spouse, siblings, offspring, including
spouse of siblings of the executives, major shareholders,
controlling person or persons who are about to be
nominated as executives or controlling persons of the
Company or its subsidiaries.
4. Having no business relationship with the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associated companies or
any juristic persons with a potential conflict of interest,
which may interrupt his independent discretion and not
having any characteristics that may affect the giving of
independent opinions on the Company’s operations
Term of the directors

The articles of association of the company provide
that at every ordinary meeting of the shareholders, one-
third of the directors, or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to one-third must retire
from office. The directors retire during the first and
second years following the registration of the company
shall be drawn by lots. In every subsequent year the
directors who have been longest time office shall retire.

A retiring director is eligible for re-election.
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2.1.2 Audit Committee

The board of directors of the company has appointed
the Audit Committee of the company on January 10,
2005, having the term of 3 years, and which term would
expire on January 10,2008. In the meeting of the board
of directors No.4/2550 on November 7,2007, the board
resolved to re-appoint the same Audit Committee tobein

office. The Committee consists of:

1. Megau Glﬂ(?lﬁﬂuuﬁ UsHUNTTUNITAT NAO
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont Chairman of Audit Committee
zmﬂqmﬂiﬁmﬁqmma ﬂjjumjmjnﬁau ........................................
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul Audit Committee
3mm‘j’ﬁm‘lm—mmﬁﬁ ﬂﬁunﬁmiwaﬂu ........................................
Mr. Katiya Greigarmn Audit Committee
vourAs N aWTh i Scope of Authorities and Duties

1. goumuliuiiniisenumanis Iued19gna o
vazlameiie e

2. goumuliusdniiszuunmsaiunuaielunaznis
asaeumeluiifianumngauasiilssanina

3. aoumumsUfiavewsinldiulaun guue
Ndwnanninduazaaiandnning Yo f1muave
aaananNSNe wSengmneiineItes ugsfve

o

3

=
=

=

v
4. WsaNAA@oN LazaUo LA A a0 DI YT Ue 9

5]

o =

VS HNTIWDINIT NI UUAUOAIAD VLN UV DI (D U

%

v

ot
53

a a 9 a o A A
5. W‘ﬂﬁmuﬂﬂmﬂsﬂ@Hﬁﬂlf]\iﬂﬁﬁﬂil‘lﬂiﬂ!ﬂ!ﬂﬂi1ﬂﬂ'}5
A A A = = o )
Mnealearses1on1sNe1auA1uTALdani g

q Y= £Y 9
watlsz Toulnianugndonsua v

6. Uuian1soula awNnuznsIuMIUTENUD UG

L!,a3ﬂﬂl$ﬂ§iilﬂﬁﬂi’3ﬁ]ﬁ’t‘)mﬁu%i‘)ﬁ

1. Review that the Company’s financial reports to ensure
accuracy and transparency.

2. Review that the Company has appropriate and
effective Internal Control and Internal Audit systems.
3. Review that the Company complies with the
Securities and Exchange Act, the rules and regulationsof
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other laws relatedto
the Company’s business.

4. Consider, select and propose for appointment the of

the auditor and the auditing fee.

5. Consider the disclosure of the Company’s information
in case there are connected transactions or transactions
that possible conflict of interests to enhance accuracy,
transparency and adequacy.

6. Perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board of
Directors which must be approved by the Audit

Committee.
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In 2007, the Audit Committee convened atotal of4
meetings and 1 extra meeting, the record of Directors’

attendance is summarized as follows:

msnsndszan/

Q

m3szgaiiaving (p9)

Attendance / Total Meetings

FTIIUAUSNITINNTINTIVAOD
Director’s Name
1. Wegay FIROIUURA
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
zmﬂqmag@mmmma ...................
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
3qu‘f§m"lﬂ5mmﬁﬁ .......................
Mr. Katiya Greigarn

5/5

d‘ Y a
2.1.3 8B UINT

a

vSEn lidwiinawlszd1 il nuSEnd 1y

gainansaanuluuitndos 3

Jax 1
uazl¥I5n1531919

a

9 @ a 9y A o '
(Outsource) NUATUUYFLAENIT AU 19uSEndoe

0]

SURRFO VAT ILNY

2.1.3 Names of Executi ves
The company does not have full-time employees since
it only invests in the subsidiary. All finance and

accounting work has also been outsourced to subsidiary.
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Details of Directors as at December 31,2007

1. ey WIABI
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn
1333 MIFNSN 931N

Authorized Director

01g(1)
517
AAUIAMIMIAN
- PFaanaiimnsumansunianssuilundesias
Usyan In env1u5ms 5309910 Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute, Troy, New York, U.S.A.
dagrumsdenul uu3im (%)
59.36985%
ANuFuREMInsaUASIITHIIRUTMS
fivesd1i 2
Uszaumsaimanduszes 5 Udounas

L o [ [} U a o aa J
- Fhyiu : nssunudvanis lug nquussnnsiies
1Y o a o 1 a o J

- flgiiu : nssunm viEnlunquuiTanGles

LY Y ] 4
- fhyifu : nssunws va. Feelwi Tudmang
4
- fhyifu: nssunn va.aall sndsid
= Y = J <
- D95 A UEIWY 2550 : NITUMT VY. 10D AT WTDN

Py
MoIad

Age(years)
51 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Nuclear Engineering and Master's
degree of Business Administration, Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute, Troy, New York, U.S.A.
% Share in Company
59.36985%
Family Relationship between Directors
Elder brother of No.2
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : President & CEO, Premier Group of
Companies
- Present : Director, Companies in the Premier Group of
Companies
- Present : Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Co., Ltd.
- Present : Director, Calbee Tanawat Co., Ltd.
- Until 5 September 2007 : Director, SG Star Properties
Co., Ltd.

s1enuilszdil 2550
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2. g WaAss

Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn

NITNMIFND UV AINNIAZNITHMIH{IA N5

Authorized Director and Managing Director

01g(1)
501
AAUIAMIMIAN

a a 4 a o a
- Ty avneuIwes  wImsaeNaeIa
ANTFOTM
A o S
- mseuswumMNMINNuazinyznstunssunis
(DAP) 71 19/2004 DN EUIANAAATUADITUNTTUNIT
1580 Ine (10D)
- MIBUIUNANGAT UFS  anauinuduasuanitiv
N3N TBUTEN Ine 10D) T 12/2007
- MIVUTUNANGAT FND  Inauanauasuan1iv
nssuNBUTEN Ine 10D) S 38/2007
- MIBUIUMANGAT DCP  NnauIANduaTNaDIY
N35uNHUTEN Ine (I0D) U 96/2007
v 1 A Y a U
daaumInedul WS EN (%)
7.99045%
ANUTITUEMINTBUATITTHINRUTMS
9/ o w
IGRUTRGR TR
d o [
Uszaumsaihanduszez 5 Vdounas
LY o @ a 4
- Hogifu : nssunudvanis ve. ardT1ls neunmes
a I d
FenAud
- flgiu : n3sun® ve. wiides unaumes
- flwnaw 2545 -Thytiu - n35un13 V9. NFideT SaeTM
N3zl

- flagifu: nssums ve. Saaned Tsdnd (szmea ne)

e

Age(years)
50 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Computer Science, University of
Florida, US A
= Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),

Group 192004 by Thai Institute of Director (I0OD)

= Training UFS Group 12/2007 from IOD

= Training FND Group 38/2007 from IOD

= Training DCP Group 96/2007 from IOD

% Share in Company
7.99045 %
Family Relationship between Directors
Younger brother of No. 1
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : Managing Director, Datapro Computer
Systems Co., Ltd.
= Present : Director, Premier Planner Co., Ltd.
= March 2002 - Present : Director, Premier Resort Krabi
Co., Ltd.

= Present : Director, Allied Products (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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- fhyifu: nssuns uue. widosBumes lnsd
- flgtiu : n3sun® ve. wiides Avduunifilaea
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1503 3dl
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Ia
1503 el

a =

= I =
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a
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q

- Present : Director, Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Premier Fission Capitol Co., Ltd.

= Present : Director, Broadband Technology Services Co.,
Ltd.

- Present : Director, Professional Training Services Co.,
Ltd.

= Until 19 June 2006 : Director, Premier CE Co., Ltd.

= Until 20 June 2006 : Director, Raya Heritage Co., Ltd.

A d a ' d
3. MIAITing Pengalson
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj
YA o
NITUM I AN

Authorized Director

01g(1)
521
AUIAMIMSAN

a a J C4 a 1
= ﬂiﬂg}ﬂlﬂﬁ? IAINTIUAITAT JWNAINTUUWIINGIAY

Payan Tnauimiganaminedssssusans
- Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology %11
INSEAD, France

A o <
ﬂﬁﬂ‘lJill‘]J‘WlﬂWHﬁWl!Lﬁ$‘ﬂﬂ‘hl$ﬂﬁlﬂllﬂiillﬂ1§

(DAP) 34 22/2004 N UANAAATUADITUNTTUNIT
v58mIne (1OD)
o U A Y a v
daaumsnoRul HUSHN (%)
0.00013 %
ANNFNRUEMInsaUAS 1T HIIRUTMS

- aidi -

Age(years)
52 years
Education Background

- Bechelor's degree of Mechanical Engineering,

Chulalongkom University

- Master's degree of Business Administration,
Thammasart University

- Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology from
INSEAD, France

= Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),
Group 22/2004 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

% Share in Company
0.00013 %
Family Relationship between Directors

-None -
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Working Experience — past 5 years

- February 2001 - Present : Group Corporate Director,
Corporate Affairs II, Premier Group of Companies

- Present : Director, Companies in the Premier Group of
Companies

= Until 17 Augus 2007 : Director, Kulthorn Premier Co.,
Ltd.

- Until 5 September 2007 : Director, SG Star Properties
Co., Ltd.

= Until 13 March 2007 : Director,Sanyo Universal

Electric Public Co., Ltd.

4. MNEYIAY Y I
Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana

NISNMIPHD 119091

Authorized Director
01g(1))
561
AAUIAMIMIANY

- ﬂ?tgig”m’? Industrial Technology, Eastern Washington

State University, U.S.A.

MIDUIVUMNNHINNLaZAnEENTTuNITUNT
(DAP) 71 19/2004 DN ANANAATTUANTUNTTUAT
v3¥0'ne (10D)

- MIDUINNANGAT FND 910 10D 31 12/2004

- MIDUINNHANGAI DCP 91N 10D U 97/2007
o U A Y a v
daaumsnoRul HUSHN (%)

0.035225%

Age(years)
56 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Industrial Technology, Eastern
Washington State University, U.S.A.
- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),
Group 192004 by Thai Institute of Director (I0D)
= Training on Finance for Non-Finance Director (FND)
Group 122004
= Training DCP Group 97/2007 from IOD
% Share in Company

0.035225%
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(UKTBU) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE

\_

Family Relationship between Directors
-None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : President & CEO, Trading and Manufacturing
Business, Premier Group of Companies
- Present : Business Unit Director, Trading and
Manufacturing Business, Premier Group of Companies.
= Present : Director, Premier Planner Co., Ltd.
= Present : Director, Premier Resort Krabi Co., Ltd.
= Present : Director, Kulthom Premier Co., Ltd.
= Present : Director, Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.
- Present : Director, Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
- Until 2 August 2007 : Director, Broadband Technology
Services Co., Ltd.
- Until 14 August2007 : Director, Professional Training
Services Co., Ltd.
=20 June 2006 - Present: Director, Raya Heritage Co.,
Ltd.
= Until 13 March 2007 : Director, Sanyo Universal

Electric Public Co., Ltd.
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5. ‘H]Eﬂﬁ NIIAU WHRUIIENN
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
NIINMIDAIL

Independent Director

01g(1)
531
AAUIAMIMIAN

a a o
- 15yana3IAINTINAA NIV JINAIN T Bl

UMING1A Y

PSaanInianssueaavn1s Jadngal
UMY
- ﬂ?tyﬂgﬂﬂwwﬁmfﬁmﬁ{(ﬁmiﬁiﬁ%)
WMINGIOFITUAART
- ﬂ?ﬂgﬂﬁlﬂ N, Doctorate of Metallurgical Engineering
uminendelafen Ysemediu
dadrumsaerul uu3im (%)
- aidi -
ANNFNRUEMInsaUAS 1T HIIRUTMS
- aidi -
Uszaumsaimanduszes 5 Udouvnas
- WA, 2542 —9@1AN2550 : §61198n13 fudmna Tulad
Taviguaz aquaya
- flqifu : ilSnwfgnnents dninnusiann

a 4 = [ a
Meeaasuaznn 1y 1agunesa

Age(years)
53 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Industrial Engineering
Chulalongkom University
- Master's degree of Industrial Engineering
Chulalongkom University
- Master's degree of Business Administration Thammasart
University
- Doctorate of Metallurgical Engineering Tokyo
University, Japan
% Share in Company
-None -
Family Relationship between Directors
-None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
= 1999 — October 2007 : Director, National Metal and
Materials Technology Center
= Present : Director’s Advisor, National Science and

Technology Development Agency
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6. 1189AN FIREUUN
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
NITUMIDATZUAY NTTUMIAT IV

Independent Director and Audit Committee
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(UKT6U) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE

Age(years)
71 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Accounting, Thammasart
University
- Bachelor's degree of Business Administration,
Thammasart University
- Training on Director Accreditation Program(DAP),

Group 37/2005 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

% Share in Company

-None -

Family Relationship between Directors
-None -

Working Experience — past 5 years
= 6 July 1993 - Present : Chairman of the Board Premier

Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Co., Ltd.
- Present : Managing Director, Five Tor Co., Ltd.

- Present : Chairman of Audit Committee, Singer

Thailand Public Co., Ltd.

= until 20 June 2006 : Director, Datapro Computer
Systems Co., Ltd.

=20 July 2007-Present : Chairman of Audit Committee,

Premier Marketing Public Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
ﬂiillfni?)ﬂi%!!ﬁz NITUMINFIVADU

Independent Director and Audit Committee

AAUIAMIMIAN
a 4 a a
- WFyanasmsfAnmans uAsuaTuns 1 1sal
9 o 3
- MFBUSHUNINNHIN N LA NABEMTAIUNT TS
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(UKT6U) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE

Age(years)
67 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Education Srinakarintaraviroj
University
= Training on Director Accreditation Program(DAP),

Group 37/2005 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

% Share in Company

-None -

Family Relationship between Directors
-None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : Independent Advisor Consulting,
development, design and layout service business for
compensation/salary/wages/organization management
system
- Present : Director, Retail Training Co., Ltd.

- January 1955 - March 2003 : Director, HR Office

Premier Group of Companies
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Mr. Katiya Greigarn
NIIUMIOAIZHAL NITUMIATIVAOU

Independent Director and Audit Committee

AAUIAMIMIAN

- USyanaTirangs i ynasnsaiumIneds

YsnanIniaanssu i1 University of Missouri-
Rolla, US.A.

- Sammueniaanssululiln University of Missouri-
Rolla, US.A.
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(UK18U) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE

Age(years)
55 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Electrical Engineering,
Chulalongkom University
- Master's degree of Electrical Engineering, University of
Missouri-Rolla, U.S.A.
- Doctorate of Electrical Engineering, University of
Missouri-Rolla, U.S.A.
= Training on Director Accreditation Program(DAP),

Group 37/2005 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

% Share in Company
-None -
Family Relationship between Directors
-None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : General Manager, KV Electronics Co., Ltd
- Present : Executive Director, The Federation of Thai
Industries
= Present : Chairman, The Electrical and Electronics
Industry Club
- Present : Director, Electrical and Electronics Institute
(EEI), Ministry of Industry

- Present : Executive Director, Nanotechnology
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UHIKIA

Pogliu : nssunsuims guéma Tulad
SranMIv N ME@LA NN UMD 3 UNIHIA (NECTEC)
flagiiu : nssunwuIMS aanfiudteuaziann

9aeHn 33N INIANNAY (TRIDI)

Center(NANOTEC)

- Present : Executive Director, National Electronics and
Computer Technology Center NECTEC)

= Present : Exeautive Director, Telecommunications

Research and Industrial Development Institute (TRIDI)
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List of Companies in the Premier Group of Companies

\__

(
o

A

1. U9, W3iles ﬂ%%’u upiilaea 1. Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd. (PFC)
MYFINIMI AU Finance Service Business Unit

2. UNA. WMo umes Ins e 2. Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd. (PE)

3. 1. W3des uatlaea (2000) 3. Premier Capital (2000) Co., Ltd. (PC2000)

4. 19. w?gﬁﬂ'{eummamcﬁq 4. Premier Inter Leasing Co., Ltd. (PIL)

5. U9, WSl Tusamesise 5. Premier Brokerage Co., Ltd. (PB)

6. 10, W3idles uead o d 6. Premier LMS Co., Ltd. (PLMS)

7. U9. ‘W?Lﬁﬂ{ w Ing e 7. Premier Metrobus (PMB)
mugsﬁfn?mﬁ’ 1@1]151?1”%18?1 Consumer Products Business Unit

8. 13, N36IeT 1T 8. Premier Marketing Public Co., Ltd. (PM)

9. 1. WSIes 1A uﬁq ’31!@7?[91? 9. Premier Canning Industry Co., Ltd. (PCI)
10. V9. W?Lﬁﬂg 515 IWﬁﬁﬂ’c’f 10. Premier Frozen Products Co., Ltd. (PFP)
1119, Wou.¥a 11.P.M. Food Co., Ltd. (PMF)
12. 1. W3des min Tnsand 12. Premier Pet Products Co., Ltd. (PPP)
ﬁ]ﬂﬁiﬁﬂn1iﬁ1lmz@ﬂﬁ1 HNITN Trading and Manufacturing Business Unit
13. U9. W?Lﬁﬂg uama{ 13. Premier Motors Co., Ltd. (PMCO)
14.19. l9A® AV IINDS 14. IQA Laboratory Co., Ltd. IQA)
15.19. wSidles nsand 15. Premier Products Co., Ltd. (PP)
16.19. W?Lﬁﬂiﬂmwmlﬂma?q 16. Premier Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (PMN)
17. 09, W3des Taw o nwaeuous 17. Premier Home Appliance Co.,Ltd. (PHA)
18.19. duiiGen Sifa 18. Imperial Eagle Co., Ltd. (IME)
ﬁ1ﬂ§iﬁ§]ﬂﬁlﬂﬁﬁuﬂ%’wﬁ Real Estate Development Business Unit
19,19, Wiiiles Saesn nsed] 19. Premier Resort Krabi Co.,Ltd. (PRK)
20. 9. 518 UFOTNY 20. Raya Heritage Co., Ltd. (RYH)
21. 19, @515 WA 03 LUINUN 21. Seri Center Management Co.,Ltd (SCM)
22,09, @3NS Hes 22. Seri Premier Co., Ltd. (SP)
23. 19, Wi’ 23. Moo Ban Seri Co., Ltd. (MS)
24.U9. OANBIO 24.LPCA Co., Ltd. (LPCA)
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List of Companies in the Premier Group of Companies (Continued)

— Weazh
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.

v
A

FINVU )
d A
25.19. W358 Na o
aa J o S A 4
26. U9, W3igs same s vewesa
~ <3 s
27.19. @3 ue aENnd
28. U9, W3Wes Inaa uaifilnoa
29. 19, W3Wes unililaea

I
U3 o

anl
=9}

30. UD. NIk

J

oy s laAa

anl

aa
31.U9. WIYS

o—

4

S A a
NWIYTUUIN

Q q

Ra

32.19.

eR

U

4 4
33. V9. WIWET UWauues

Other Business Unit

25. Premier TDO Co., Ltd.

26. Premier Alternative Motors Co.,Ltd.

27. Seri Assets Co., Ltd.

28. Premier Global Capital Co.,L td.
29. Premier Capital Co., Ltd.

30. Premier CE Co., Ltd.

31. Premier Resource Recycle Co.,Ltd
32. Premier Sukhumvit Center Co.,Ltd.

33. Premier Planner Co.,Ltd.

(PTDO)
(PAM)
(SA)
(PGCAP)
(PC)
(PCE)
(PRR)
(PSC)

(Planner)

Y a

Swazivea eI UFUI Mtz e RNV LS EN Usz IAfUIMs o 314 31 Suanna 2550

9

va Y

Details of Managements as at December 31,2007

Fo- ANA/AUNU

1o ulsedil 2550

Name/Position
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2.2 Criteria for Appoinfting the Directors and

Managements
For the year 2007, the board had not appointed the

Nomination Committee. The selecting of the qualified
persons to be appointed as the director will be made by
consultation among the board. The board will select
them according to knowledge, experience, ability, and
present them to the board. For the annual ordinary
general meeting of the shareholders for the year 2007,
there were three directors who would retire by rotation :
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn, Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj,
and Mr. Udom Chatiyanont which was in accordance
with the articles of association of the company. The
board had considered and resolved that it was deemed
appropriate to present to the annual ordinary general
meeting of the shareholders that the three directorswould
be re-elected as directors for another one term, because
these persons had knowledge, ability, and experience
which is helpful for the business operation of the
company. The ordinary general meeting of the
shareholders for the year 2007, had unanimously

resolved to re-clect the three directors for another term.

2.3 Remuneration for the Managements

2.3.1 Monetary Remuneration

(1) Directors

The Company has the policy to pay remuneration
only to directors who not involve in the operation
management. In 2007, the remuneration to the directors
is as follows:

1) Premier Technology Public Company Limited

1o ulsedil 2550

39

Annual Report 2007




I (

\

urdn waidas nalulad A0 (WKL) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY umé\

\__

S o Audedszauam | mdwdiwm) | $uouiuam)
No. Name Meeting Annual Tota(Baht)
Allowance(Baht) Gratuity(Baht)

1 NeYAN FIRGIIUR 58,000 50,000 108.000
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont

2 MELEAY TAunganna 55,000 50,000 105,000
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul

3 MeTAE Tnsnaan 55,000 50,000 105,000
Mr. Katiya Greigarn

4 wefnssent Wugussoard 20,000 50,000 70,000
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong

FIUANDUUNUNTTUNIT 388,000
Total Remuneration for the Directors

d o o

a v 9 a d a I~
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- aidi -

2.4 msmnuauanams
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aaznssumsvTinlinudinglunisdidy
A daq A o
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2) Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd. : subsidiary
-None —
(3) Managements
1) Premier Technology Public Company Limited
-None -
2) Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd. : subsidiary
The remuneration of the managements of Datapro
Computer Systems Co., Ltd., in the form of salary and
bonus, totaling 15 persons, is the amount of 28.3Million
Baht.
2.3.2 Other remuneration

-None -

2.4 Corporate Governance

(1) Good Corporate Governance Policy
The board pay attention to good governance. They
believe that the procedure of good governance and

management in the frame of good ethics, which has

1o ulsedil 2550
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transparency, can be inspected, and is fair to all relevant
parties, which will promote the company to grow stably
and sustainably, and will enhance confidence to
shareholders, investors, and all relevant parties. For the
year 2007, the board reviewed and fixed the good
governance policy for use as a guideline for writing on
performance, as appeared in the website of the company

www.Premier-Technology.co.th. In addition, the board

fixed several performance guidelines on the rights ofthe
shareholders, the building of equality among all
shareholders, the promotion of social equality in
education, the development of disadvantaged juveniles,
in addition to previous years, as per the details in the

next heading :

(2) Performance in Accordance with the Principles
of Good Corporate Governance

The company holds importance in compliance with
the good governance policy, as fixed by the board for
fairness to all the relevant parties, as well as to provide
services to its customers with international quality
products and staff. It made the report on compliance
with good governance, which is in accordance with the5
categories of'the principles of good governance, as fixed
by the Stock Exchange of Thailand in the year 2006, as

follows :

Category 1. Rights of Shareholders

The board fixed the good corporate governance policy
to recognize basic shareholder rights, and to not perfom
any actions that violate those rights. The basic rights of
shareholders as security investors, and the company
owners, are comprised of the right to buy, sell, or transfer
any security which they hold, the right to have a sharein

the profit of the company, the right to obtain adequate
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information on the company, and the right to participate
in shareholder meetings to express opinions, decision
making on important matters such as dividend payment,
electing or removal of members of the board, the fixing
of directors' remuneration, the appointing of the auditor
and auditor's fee, the approval of important transactions
that affect the direction of the operation of the company,
amendments of the memorandum and articles of
association of the company, etc. Normally, the general
meeting of the shareholders is held once a year.

In the shareholders' meeting the company complies
with the criteria as prescribed by law, and operates in
any matters to promote and facilitate the exercise of the
rights of the shareholders in every meeting. For the year
2007, the company held the ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on April 26, 2007, at Premier Corporate
Park, One Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road. The
company sent the notice of he meeting 15 days in
advance to the Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd,
which is the company registrar, to send to shareholders,
including the criteria and procedure governing the
shareholders' meeting, and information regarding the
agenda of the shareholders' meeting. Each agenda
contained the opinion of the board sufficiently and
clearly, so that the shareholders could make their
decision and vote. The company put all the information
on the website of the company 7 days before the date of
the meeting. In the meeting, 7 directors (out of all 8
directors), participated in the meeting. That includedthe
chairman of the board, managing director, and chairman
of the audit committee. The chairman of the meeting
gave the shareholders the opportunity to exercise the
right to inquire. There were questions on the guidelines
of business operation which would make continuous

profit. The board and the managing director presented
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the guidelines to be adjusted to have more proportionon
service business, which provides more profit, and took
the suggestion and opinion to consider for business
operation. The minutes of the meeting was sent to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days, and later
publicized in the website of the company. In addition,
the board fixed the guideline to publicize the notice of
the meeting and supporting documents, through the
website of the company, at the same time as that on
which the company sent such documents to the
shareholders for the next meeting.

For the shareholders to send their questions in
advance before the meeting date, the company will
create an online system on the website of the company
to facilitate the shareholders to send their questions,
suggestions, and opinions before the meeting date, for
the annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders, in
the year 2008, in addition to other usual and general

communications made for the previous meetings.

Category 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The board has supervised and protected the basic
rights equally for all groups and every shareholder, in
both the procedure on the holding of shareholder
meetings, and in having measures to prevent the
directors, executives, and staffusing inside information
to procure undue benefits, and to have the disclosure of
information on their interests, and the relevant personsof
the directors and executives

For the shareholders' ordinary general meeting of
2007, the board gave the opportunity to the shareholders,
who could not attend the meeting by themselves, tomake
an instrument appointing a proxy to allow independent
directors, or other persons, to attend the meeting on their

behalf, by using forms which allow both for shareholders
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to indicate voting by themselves, or which allow the
proxy to consider and vote on their behalf, and which
were sent together with the notice for the meeting, or
which could be downloaded from the website of the
company. The company fixed the names and addresses
of 2 independent directors to be alternatives for
appointing as a proxy by shareholders. For the election
of directors, to facilitate the shareholders to elect, it was
proceeded to have the shareholders elect the directors for
the number, as specified in the articles of association of
the company, at the same time. If any shareholder had an
objection, then the director election would be made,
person by person, by ballot, which had been prepared.
Other significant agenda to which any shareholder
objected would also use the ballot. For the ordinary
general meeting of the shareholders 0f2008, the board
has the policy that each shareholder should present any
matter to be added as agenda, and to present the name of
the person for director election. The period for
acceptance of any matter was from November 16,2007,
to January 16,2008. The company publicized the criteria
and qualification of the directors, the form for presenting
any matter, the form for presenting the name of the
person, and the letter of consent from the person whose
name was presented, in the website of the company, and
also informed the Stock Exchange of Thailand on
November 15,2007.

The keeping and preventing of the use of inside
information, and the disclosure by the directors and
executives on the information concerning their interests,
and ofrelevant persons, is comprised of :

1) The company has the policy, on the security of
information systems, to maintain the criteria on
important fundamental systems in order to build control

systems which have the quality for use with, work,
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computer, and information communication systems

2) The company makes secrecy agreements with its
staff, employees, suppliers, service providers, and the
company visitors to prevent the disclosure of secret data

or information ofthe company or its subsidiaries.

3) The board and executive of the company jointly fixed
written procedures concerning the use of inside
information of the company to ensure transparency,
equitable treatment, and fairness to the shareholders,and
to prevent procurement of interest by the use of inside
information which has not been disclosed to the public,
including to avoid the criticism on the suitability of the
sale and purchase of the company's securities. This
means that the directors, executives, and staff of the
company must keep the company's secrets, and/or inside
information, and to not disclose or procure benefits for
themselves or for other persons, whether directly or
indirectly, and must not sell, purchase, transfer, or
receive the transfer of the securities of the company by
using the secret and/or inside information of the
company, unless such information has been disclosed to
the public, and must not use the secret and/or inside
information of the company which may cause damage to
the company, whether directly or indirectly, and mustnot
sell, purchase, transfer, or receive the transfer of the
securities of the company during the period of 1 month
and within 2 working days after the disclosure of such
information. This requirement includes the spouse, and
any child which has not yet become sui juris, of the
directors, executives, and staff of the company. Any
person who violates such requirement will be punished
by discipline and/or law, as the case may be.

4) The company provides information to the directors

and executives on the duty of executives to report their

1o ulsedil 2550

45

Annual Report 2007




I\\ \

wrdn whdas malulad Tiin (WKL) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE

HAZUNAIMUA TNEAIN W3 U HaANTNELazaaIn
HEANSNE W.A. 2535 A A IUTO A IHUAVD IR D 1A
[ @ o [ dd’ A
nannsnauralszmealng wazlunsainnssunsvie
Y a r v o au Y A
AUTMIFOUHANNTWIVDILTHNADII101UN15 D ©
wannsndluuSinveswnues gavsa uazyasidala
Aaa 1 o Y] 4
V35qUANIZ MIWUIANTT 59 UMW I VHANNT NI LA Y
aa1nrannsng w.a.2535 avtely 3 Susiinis1d

1PN 0.8.9. NIV B IHBLNT A ENTIT ¥ UN D 11

d‘ Y YA
HyIahn 3 uﬂummmwumu"lmml

o 1 a Y a

vsEnld anudnyaedntvesfiidmldidenn

U [ I 9 1 YA Y vV Y a
nau lidnzdlui@dmIddonie Tu 1dun dusuis

o a o A gy Y A ]
UASNUNNTUUBIUITEN Wi@@llﬁ’flullﬂlﬁﬂﬂ1ﬂu®ﬂ ¥ U

9 & Y 3| v a o v A
RIMU gnNAN Wudu TasuSinaszuinal1nasg
% Y Aa < Y 1 Y
ﬁUUﬁHuLLﬁ$ﬂ1§Lﬁuﬂﬂlﬁ]ﬂﬂm‘u%'lﬂ?jllﬁ’\]ullﬂLﬁ’fﬂ‘i@ﬂ
1 I < o A @
ﬂqu%%LﬂUﬂi$Iﬂ“§u1Uﬂﬁﬂ1m1!\11u!Lﬁ$ﬂ1§WGJJ‘LH

gsnaveswsEn uiEnlddfidaunguuisuas

a

Y o A A 9 A Y A Y A
Yomviuaing v 9o 1HaNnsvoe AR
9.
f

aruldide

~

@ U Yo I ] = Aa o
ﬂQﬂﬁ?’)hlﬂ’iﬂﬂﬁ@'lm!,ﬂuﬂﬂﬁﬂ ‘Ui‘]sl‘ﬂul UNITIYNU

A @ o Aa a o d’ﬂ/d 1 Y A
Mot umssuiunuvewsEndiduld 1 en
o o < ¢ Ao
nlusrenulszdnl wazludvledvewsin nag
Ll Y A a 1 a o Y Y
alddemusonaneaaenIsuNITUTEN Ida8ms

Foensawilnaml

aw Yo a A q9 o A
vsEnladmuaasseiussagsname niinaud o
awa o i o ¢ a o a

YA lumsihaudlsanudedadqesa SuRaso
sagy iy 1310 aind @eaas tasiano g1
1 o’/’ 0o R R A A yA v Y 1
luvgads Taedilde@nivesdmdruldidonnie

Yy yA g ¥ 1w v A o
UYsgnouAle giou QNN AAsINL QuUd ua e
&Y a o @ 2 < J
Winawue s awwazidealiingluiuledves

UTHN www.Premier-Technology.co.th

holdings of shares in the company, the penalty underthe
Securities and Securities Exchange Act B.E. 2535, the
requirement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and in
the event that the directors or executives sell or purchase
securities of the company, that they must report their
holding of shares of the company, and of their spouse,
and any children who have not become sui juris,
according to Section 59 of the Securities and Securities
Exchange Act B.E. 2535, within 3 working days to the

SEC, so that it can publicize such information.

Category 3 Role of Stakeholders

The company pays attention to the rights of every
group of stakeholder, whether they are inside
stakeholders, such as the executives and staff of the
company, or outside stakeholders, such as creditors or
customers, etc. The company is aware that the support
and presenting of opinion from every group of
stakeholders is helpful for the operation and business
development of the company. The company has
performed in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations so that the rights of the stakeholders will be
well protected. The company has reported on the
operations of the company to the stakeholders both
through its annual report and the website of the company.
The stakeholders can contact the board by normal
communication.

The company fixed the business ethic for staff to
work with continuous loyalty and honesty, responsibility,
determination, discipline, unity, devotion, and
development, by taking into account the rights of every
group of stakeholders, which is comprised of
shareholders, customers, creditors, competitors and the

staff of the company, as per the details in the website of

the company www.Premier-Technology.co.th
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The company has developed the mechanism that the
stakeholders can be involved in improving the company
performance, which comprises of :

1) To regularly provide information on current
services and products, including to provide
training, to the customers.

2) To build a good relationship between the staffof
the company and the stakeholders through the
activities of the staff club such as playing sport,
and having social activities together, etc.

3) To create partnership programs in various forms
between the company and the stakeholders to
improve business together.

The company pays attention to environmental
responsibility of the community and society by fixinga
policy on the environment and society, as per the details
in the website of the company www.Premier-
Technology.co.th. Forthe year 2007, the company has
the activity for conservation of natural resources and the
environment by mangrove forest afforestation at Khlong
Khon, Samutsongkram province, and by donation to the
Yuvabadhana Foundation for the education of the poor

and disadvantaged youth, of the amount of Baht

2,209,772.

Category 4 Disdosure and Transparency

The board pays attention to the disclosure of
information which is correct, accurate, timely, and
transparent, of its business operations, and reports both
financial and non-financial information according to the
criteria set by the SEC and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and includes the information on the
performance of the duties of the board, which comprises
of the number of meetings, policies and remuneration of

the directors. In addition, the company also discloses

1o ulsedil 2550

47

Annual Report 2007




|
(8L

wrdn whdas malulad Tiin (WKL) PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE
\___/\

gunadouuazdiny uleineuazranisUinneany
o w a d'd a o 9 "9y
nmstinuguanan1sna Teeuiimldmeunsdoya
AT AUNAUDIUTHNAUFOIMAUA S TDNITIHSLUN S
Al [ [ o [
doyan1e) vewmaranannindunalszma lne uag
o ¢ au o o v
Auledveswsinniniv Inenasdengy vagla

Psulzaliduihgiunaeanan

a v d v a 1 a
ﬂm%ﬂﬁiﬂﬂWiUﬁHﬂlﬂuﬁiUWﬂ‘]jﬂ VADIUNTITINU

o

FIVVOITENUALVTENGD B UL TI AUNANNNITIIU
d' o a v U v o d?

mlsnglusisalsesil wnsRudnainda iy
amumaITumItydnsusesialy Taesdenly
uloe I NIMIzay ANZNITUNITATIVAD VDL
I a

Audao UMUA UM YL 1T 1BNUNNTRULA 2 52U
aguaeluswdansitlamedoyadiago el
ioane Tumnemasznewsunsluuays1eaula

AULNITUNITUTENNT 1Y

1 o o o’qﬂz’ a o @
Tudmvesnud1ufasnuduusiu uSdnda
n ya @ :/’ 1 Y Y
Tuldimsdadmutesawmniy laveunuie i
Yo o 9 A A U A [ 9
NISNNIIERANIs Mutnaade dod1snufaanu
o YA Y o a P o A A ]
aotiu fAdeduiin s 1giuazniasgNnedde
3 a o a
sawiaitla Tonaldyanamldansaauedoaariu
vsadnowdoasdod 199 Muinasnuduiutain

=1 4 a v Y
AuladvewiEnla

YA 5 ANNSUAAYOUVRIAMLNTTUMS

1. Jas9a3anuznssums

=

ANZNITUNTVOISHNUsZn o UA 10 A Aa dall

v a ¢ A &L
ﬂ’]“JZﬂ'J’]iJﬁ’]ll’]iﬂ 3J1J§$ﬁ°ﬂﬂ1§ﬂl7]ﬁ’lll’lﬁﬂlﬂ@

a

1 o A a o a o
UszToriaonisauiugsnalinuusim Idghaian

Tumsugianihie s Tosigagaue sdno qu

= ° o w a
Lﬂul’gﬂTﬂuﬂuIﬂﬂWﬂ UAUNH NINURLE Aaa1lRa

policies and results on its performance with the

environment and society, and its policies and

performance on good governance. The company
publicizes the information of the company through
channels, including the media of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and the website of the company, both in Thai
and English languages, which the company adjusts tobe

current information

The board is responsible for the financial statements
of the company and its subsidiaries, and the financial
information in its annual report. Such financial reportis
made in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and standards. The accounting policy chosen
is suitable. The auditing committee will review the
quality of the financial statements and the internal audit
system, including the adequate disclosure of important
information in the notes of the financial statement, and
then report to the board.

For investor relations, the company has not set upany
specific division, but has assigned the Managing
Director to communicate with institutional investors,
and the relevant

shareholders, security analysts,

government authorities, including to give the
opportunity to the general public to present opinion or
make queries through the investor relation section inthe

website of the company.

Category 5 Responsibilities of the Board

1. Board Structure

The board is comprised of the persons having
knowledge, ability, and experience which are useful to
the company, and of those who devote time to
performing their duties in the best interests of the

shareholders. They are persons who fix policies and
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plans, supervise, and follow up the performance of
executives to be in accordance with the plans. At
December 31,2007, the board comprises of 4 executive
directors and 4 Independent directors. The number of
independent directors is 50 per cent or which exceeds1/3
of the total board of directors, which is in accordance
with the criteria set by the SEC, in order to make a
balance in consideration of any matters, which is suitable
with the duties of the board. Under the articles of
association, the board must comprise of directors of not
less than 5 persons, whose term is as per the details in

page 24.

For the committee of the company, the audit
committee is comprised of 3 independent committee
whose term is 3 years, with main duties to build
credibility, correctness, reliability, and to present the
financial information of the company on time, and to

have qualifications as set by the SEC.

The board fixed the guideline to appoint a nomination

committee from time to time to help the board as assigned

The performance of duties of the directors and
executives of the company are clearly separated. The
chairman of the board, who is a director, has the
additional power and duty aside from other director,asto
calling for a meeting of the board, to be the chairman in
the board meeting, to make a vote as the casting vote in
the event that the votes are equal, and to act as the
chairman in the shareholder meeting. The managing
director has the power and duty to manage and carry out
the works. The Chairman of the board and the managing
director are different persons. Therefore, the board can

check and balance the performance of the executive
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TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COmMPANY LIMITE

efficiently.

For the performing of the duty as a director of
another company, the company has disclosed the
information on directorship positions for each directorin
the form presenting annual information (Form 56-1),and
in the annual report so that the shareholders know
annually. The company does not limit the number of
companies for which a director can be the director in
those companies, which depends on the discretion and
potential of each director, which is different from each
other. For the managing director and the executives, the
company has a clear set policy and procedure for the

holding of directorship in other company.

At present, the board has not appointed a company
secretary. The secretary to the board will perform as the
company secretary for making and coordinating to make
the notices and minutes of the board meetings,
committee meetings, shareholder meetings, and annual
reports, and to keep document on the director register,
including to keep it within a computer system which is
easy to access and which cannot be amended, and

coordinate with the legal division and other divisionsto

support the works of the boards on laws and regulations.

2. Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board

The board performs the duty to consider and approve
the operation of the company which is comprised of
policies, visions, missions, strategies, risks, plans, and
budgets, so that the management can proceed according

to the policies efficiently and effectively.

Good Corporate Governance Policy Forthe year
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2007, the board reviewed the good corporate governance
policy and made it in writing as per the details in

www.Premier-Technology.co.th in order to have the

efficient, transparent, policy which can be checked, and
build confidence for all relevant parties, and to fix the
procedure to review such policy regularly in order thatit
will be in accordance with the conditions of the

company.

Business Ethics The board arranged to have the

written business ethics as per the details in

www.Premier-Technology.co.th, so that the execution
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and staff will hold them as principles for business
operation which is correct and fair to all relevant
persons, including the staff, and which has been
informed to every person to know in order for them to

perform accordingly.

Conflict of Interest The board has set the policy on
conflict of interest, so that any decision to proceed with
business activities must be for the best interest of the
company only, and which should avoid any actionwhich
would cause a conflict of interest, by fixing that any
person related or connected to the considered transaction
must inform the company of his relationship or
connection with that transaction and must not
participate, and who has no power to approve anything
in that transaction. The audit committee will present to
the board about any connected transaction, and any
transaction which has a conflict of interest. The
suitability of such stipulation is considered carefully,and
the company must comply with the criteria of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, including to disclose it in the
form to present as annual information (Form 56-1), and

in the annual report. The details of the stockholding of

the directors and executives are on page 45-46.
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Internal Audit The board pays attention to the
supervision and internal audit, both at the executivelevel
and operation level, which is efficient. The internalaudit
is the important mechanism to build management
confidence, to help reduce business risks, to help the
business operate efficiently by proper allocation of
resources to achieve its goals, to help prevent dishonesty
or the loss of property, to help ensure that financial
reports are correct and reliable, and to help that staff
perform in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations, and to help to protect the investment money
of the shareholders. Therefore, the company fixed the
duty, and the power of the executives and operating staff,
clearly in writing. There is the supervision of using of
assets of the company for benefit and division of duties
between the operating staff and the person who

supervises and assesses their performance, so that there

are the proper check and balances between them.

The company makes and reviews controlling systens;
operations, financial reporting, compliance with rules,
regulations, policies, and working supervision, including
risk management, and pays attention to early warning
and unusual transactions, of which the internal auditor
from outside the organization has the duty to inspect to
ensure that the company has sufficient and proper
internal auditing, and also that the internal auditor has
independence and can perform fully the duty of checks
and balances. The internal auditor will report the result
to the audit committee. The company will follow upand
assess it regularly. The company will assess the
sufficiency of the internal audit at least once a year to

ensure that the system will continue efficiently.
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TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COmMPANY LIMITE

Risk Management The board pays attention to risk
management for the organization as a whole, and
assesses and manages the risk of the organization, in
order to manage risk to be at an acceptable level. The
company has no division responsible directly for this
matter. However, the company makes the control self
assessment both at executive level and operation levelto
jointly assess the risks, problems, obstacles, and
uncertainties, which may affect the operation in
achieving the goals of the company, or the incidents
which may make the company lose business
opportunities, the risks which may arise from the causes
from inside and outside the organization. It is fixed that
if any risk is an obstacle to the business operation, and
that it can prevent achieving the company's goals, then
the company must have the measures to manage that sk,
and to promote, and stimulate every person to build a
working culture of risk awareness, have understandingof
the causes the risk, such as to improve working
procedure, and to use the resources properly to prevent
and reduce any loss which may occur. In contrast, such
systematical operation will make the company receive
new business opportunities which will build additional
value for the organization.

In 2007, the company assessed the risks and the
sufficiency of the internal audit system in order to
seek the guidelines to improve and amend the working
operations to have more efficient performance, of which
the scope includes the management, marketing, sales and
resources. The company assigns and follows up that the
executive who is responsible for each work proceeds
with the guidelines on working improvement, including
to have the relevant persons used for the proceedings so

that the performance will be more efficient. The board

considers and reviews the sufficiency of the risk
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management system and the effectiveness of the risk
management many times, including to pay attention to
early warnings.

Report of the Board of Directors The audit
committee has a duty to review financial report, which
accounting staff and auditor will have a meeting
altogether, and then present the financial report to the
Board of Director of the Company every quarter. The
Board the Director ofthe Company will be responsible
for total financial statements of the Company and
subsidiaries, including the financial information (Report
on Responsibility of the Board of Director as to Financial
Report) which is specified in prepared in accordance
with the accounting standard, and audited by the cetified
public accountant of the Company. The disclosure ofthe
important information, both financial and non-financial
information, is made based on the complete and
consistent of facts.

3. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors fixes the meeting normally
every 3 months. The meetings schedule are set in
advance annually, and additional special meeting maybe
held as necessary. The agenda is set clearly. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director jointly set the agenda, consider the matters tobe
transacted in the meeting, and give opportunity to each
director to propose any matter to be transacted as the
agenda of the meeting. The documents will be sent in
advance before the meeting date so that the Board of
Director will have sufficient time to study the
information before the meeting unless in case of
emergency, which the director can ask information from
Managing Director, or secretary of the Board of
The

Directors, in addition to the documents sent.

Company makes performance report and presented it to
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the Board of Director every month, so that the Board of
Director can supervise the operation of the managing
division continuously and on time.

In consideration of the matters, Chairman of the
Board of Director who acts as the Chairman of the
meeting will grant the opportunity to the directors to
express their opinion freely, and allocate sufficient time
for the director to discuss the important issue. The
Managing Director, as the top executive of the company,
participates in the meetings every time to explain
information which is year plan, performance, new
project, etc., including to know the policy directly and
use it efficiently. The resolution of the meeting will be
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. The decision of the meeting will be made by
majority rote. That is a director will have only one vote
for the voting. Any director who has interest in any
matter will have no right to vote in that matter. In case
of equal vote, the Chairman of the meeting can have
another vote as the casting vote.

In each meeting of the Board of Director of the
Company, the secretary of the Board of Director attends
the meeting and will record the minutes of the meeting.
The material part is comprised of date, time of beginning
- finishing the meeting, names of the directors present
and absent, summary of the matter proposed to the Boad
of Directors, summary of the issue which has discussion,
note of the Board of Director, and resolution of the Board
of Directors, etc. Then, it will be proposed to the
meeting to be certified in the next meeting, and send to
the Chairman of the Board of Director to consider and
sign to certify its correctness. In addition, the
information and documents on the meetings is kept both

the original and by computer system for convenience in

searching and referring, which it cannot be amended.
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Normally the Board of Directors will attend themeeting
every time and every person unless in case of necessary
cause which will be informed in advance beforethemeeting
(Additional details of the meeting in the year2007isinpage
22-23,26). Moreover, it is the policy of the Board thatthe
non-executive directors have the opportunity to have
meeting, as necessary, among themselves, without
management team, to debate the issues they are interested.
The meeting outcome will be notified by them to the
managing director.

4. Remuneration

The company has the policy to pay remunerationtothe
directors and executive which is incentive intheappropriate
levels, by taking into account the performance of the
Company, and in accordance with the industry level in
which the Company operates, including suitability withthe
position and responsibility of each directorand executive,in
the forms of director's remuneration, meeting remuneration,
salary and bonus.

Director's Remuneration In the year 2007, thedirector
who is not stakeholder considered the payment o fdirector
remuneration, and the 2007 Annual Ordinary General
Meeting of the Shareholding had a resolutiontoapprovethe
director's remuneration on April 26,2007, by fixing the
payment of directors' remuneration for the directorwhonot
involve in the operation management., which is currently
comprised of 4 Independent Directors, and fortheamountof
not exceed Baht 500,000 totally per annum.

Remuneration of Managing Director and Executive
The Board will fix the Managing Director'sremunerationby
consider the result of appraisal made by the boardbutwill
not include the Managing Director. The criteria for
appraisal is set in advance together with the Managing
Director, and is objective, with care to pay theremuneration

of the executive of the Company and subsidiary at the
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appropriate level and in competitive rate in the same
industry, in order to keep the executive, who hasquality,to
work with the Company. The Chairman of the Boardwill
inform the result of the consideration to the Managing
Director.

The Board fixes the guideline to set up theRemuneration

Committee from time to time to help the board asassigned.

5. Board Self Assessment

The Board assessed their performance as the whole to
assist in reviews of their performance, problem, and
obstruction in the previous year, and to help increasethe
efficiency of their works. The Board jointly fixed the
criteria of assessment and the assessment as a whole
regularly since the year 2007.
6. Board and Management Training

The Board has policy to encourage and facilitatetraining
for all internal parties related the corporate governance
including member of the audit committee and executiveto
continuously improve their performances, such as
consultancy, study guideline of making foresight. The
members of the Board have participated the training in
various courses from the Association to PromoteInstituteof
Thai Director (IOD) at all times. In the event thatthereisa
change of director, or new directors, the managementwill
provide documents and information useful to performtheir
duties, including to arrange to have introduction to the
nature of business and the operation of the Companytothe
new directors. In addition, the Company promotes to
provide knowledge to personnel relating to works of
Company secretary and internal auditing, which relatesto
supervision of the Company. The Company develops
personnel to succeed the executive's, and fixes the
successors in case the executives in any levels in cannot

perform their duties.
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2.5 Protection Against the Use of Inside Information

(Details are as described on Page 44-45 )

2.6 Internal Control

The Company realizes the importance of an internal
control system and therefore monitors the operations of
the Company and its Subsidiaries. This is to ensure that
there is a sufficient and appropriate internal control
system to protect the assets of the Company and its
subsidiary from being misused orused without proper
authority. It also appointed an Audit Committee to
examine the accuracy of financial statements and the
internal control systems. This Committee is also
responsible for examining the Company’s business
practices to ensure compliance with the Securities and
Stock Market laws and regulations. A summary of the
Company’s internal control in various areas is shown

below:

2.6.1 Organization and Environment

The Company set goal for business operation and
working clearly according to the types of products,
which can be measured, and compare the target with the
actual performance at every stage. The Company
provides incentive or remuneration to the staff by
considering the possibility of the goal. The Company
arrange the organization chart to divide the functionsinto
function lines, and fix about ethics, policy on business
supervision, conflict of interest, including to make the
powers to operate in writing, and adjust it to be suitable

with the current business condition.

2.6.2 Risk Management

The Company assesses both internal and external risk
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factors which may affect its business operations. The
purpose is to analyze and rate the risk levels accordingto
the effects and the possibility of the risk happening in
each business procedure by analyze and leveling the risk
according with the impact and possibility to occur in
each procedure of business, in order to fix the risk
management plan, including to have internal assessment
by itselftogether with the internal control divisionevery
year.  The Company has also set a risk management
plan in cooperation with the internal control unit of the
Premier Group of Companies and regularly monitors the

situations or risk factors.

2.6.3 The Control of Management’s Operations

The Company has prepared a manual on operational

authorities which clearly specifies the scope of
authorities and the amount each management level is
authorized to approve. The Company has also organized
the work structure under which the duties to approve
transactions and

transactions, record accounting

managing assets are separated. It also monitors the
Company’s performance and practices to ensure strict
compliance with current laws and regulations.

2.6.4 Information and Communication Systems

Important information on various matters is compiled
for management decisions. The Company follows
generally accepted accounting principles and retains all
necessary accounting documents by the Revenue

Department’s laws and regulations.

The Company provides the communication systems
which are the communication of the responsibilities and

duties to employees since they started their work, the
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orientation, training and probation. The Company
provides various channels for the employees’ opinion,
the internal communication and the outsiders. When the
Company is reported or complained of the products,
services or the other, the Company finds out of the cause
and resolves it immediately

2.6.5 Monitoring Systems

The Company monitors and evaluates corporate

operating  performance by  comparison  with
predetermined targets. A Rolling Plan is made every
quarter, and each unit is required to analyze the reasons
for any differences. The aim is to identify directions for

improving the operations.

2.7 Dividend Payment Policy

The Company has dividend payment policy is based
on its performance and cash flow. The Company’s Boad
of Directors will propose dividend payment to
shareholders’ meeting for consideration on a yearly
basis.

On 26 April 2007, the Annual General Meeting of the
Company’s shareholders passed aresolution approving
the payment of a dividend of Baht 0.10 per share to the
Company’s shareholders from the Company’s income of

the year 2006, a total of Baht 14.2 million. The dividend

was paid in May 2007.
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1. Connected Transactions with Persons Who May

Have Had Conflict of Interest

During the year, the Company and its subsidiary had
business transactions with related companies (relatedby
having the same shareholders and/or directors) such as
Premier Motors Co., Ltd., Premier Resort Krabi Co.,
Ltd., IQA Laboratory Co., Ltd., Premier CE Co., Ltd.,
Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd., Seri Premier Co., Ltd.,
Premier Marketing Co., Ltd., Premier Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. And Seri Center Management Co., Ltd. Such
business transactions were in line with the terms and
conditions mutually agreed upon, or the agreements
between the Company and those companies, and were
business as usual. These included revenue from selling
goods and services, revenue from transfer of rights,
expenses of selling, administrative and commission
which are also provided in the Notes of the Financial
Statements for the year 2007 in Remark 6.

2. Connected Transactions Between the Company

and Its Subsidiary.

-None-
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1. Operating Result

In the year 2007, the company and its subsidiary had
net profit from operation in the amount of 18.78 Million
Baht come from the gross profit 370.76 Million Baht
which come from sales and service income of computer
and software business, other income in the amount of
20.69 Million Baht, company’s selling and
administrative expenses in the amount of 345.12 Million
Baht, interest expenses in the amount of 5.91 Million
Baht, and the corporate income tax in the amount of

15.71 Million Baht.

The change of the company’s financial status and
performance in the year 2007 by comparison with the
year 2006, net profit decreased by 45.85 Million Baht,as
a result from the year 2006 the company had profit
incurred from the revenues of remuneration from
transfer of right in the amount of 23.17 Million Baht,
gain on sales investment in the amount 0f43.39 Million
Baht, income from sales and services decreased by 40.90
Million Baht, other income which was the compensation
from sale of IT business decreased by 5.34 Million Baht,

selling and administrative expenses increased by 26.18

Million Baht, interest expense decreased by 3.16 Million
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Baht and corporate income tax decreased by 9.17 Million

Baht.

(2) Financial Status

The total assets of the company and its subsidiary in
the amount 0f 732.10 Million Baht decreased by 104.59
Million Baht result from cash and cash equivalents
decreased by 65.23 Million Baht, current investment
increase by 7.41 Million Baht, trade receivable
decreased by 19.27 Million Baht, mainly to the
inventory of computer decreased by 43.03 Million Bakht,
withholding income tax deducted at source decreasedby
10.18 Million Baht, accrued service income decreased
by 5.86 Million Baht, prepaid service cost which thecost
was adept in proportion of service income increased by
20.00 Million Baht, other current assets increased by
1.52 Million Baht, pledged fixed deposits increased by
10.53 Million Baht from inventory purchased, other
long-term investments decreased by 2.25 Million Baht,
net leasehold right and equipment decreased by 14.45
Million Baht, deposit on shares-related party for
purchase investment in subsidiary increased by 18.10
Million Baht, and other non-current assets decreased by

1.46 Million Baht.

The total liabilities of the company and its subsidiary
in the amount of 535.52 Million Baht decreased by
115.10 Million Baht result from account payable
decreased by 108.77 Million Baht, due to related parties
decreased by 2.51 Million Baht, account payable-
factoring company decreased by 24.03 Million Baht,
accrued expense increased by 18.12 Million Baht,
deferred service income increased by 33.27 Million
Baht, corporate income tax payable decreased by 14.45
Million Baht, other current liabilities decreased by 4.85

Million Baht, current portion of long-term loans and
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long-term liabilities decreased by 7.24 Million Baht,

current portion of long-term liabilities under

rehabilitation plan decreased by 1.40 Million Baht.

Shareholder’s equity of the company and its
subsidiary in the amount of 196.58 Million Baht
increased by 10.51 Million Baht result from net profitof
the company and its subsidiary in the amount of 18.78
Million Baht, Minority interest increased by 5.92
Million Baht, and the paid dividend for year 2006 in the

amount of 14.19 Million Baht.

(3) Major Factors and Influences which may A ffect

Future Operations or Financial Status

-None-
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the integrity
and objectivity of the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary reasonable assurance thatthe
financial statements present fairly financial position,
results of operation, cash flow, the books and records of
the Company accurately reflect all transactions, the
Company’s assets are properly safeguarded, including
the control systems designed to protect against fraudand
irregularity transaction. The financial statements have
been prepared with the chosen accounting policy deemed
appropriate and applied on consistency basis in
accordance with generally

accepted accounting

principles, and significant information has been
adequately disclosed in note to financial statements, in
which the independent auditor express an opinion in the
auditor’s report.

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee
with Independent Directors in providing efficiently

financial statements and internal control system.

(WY AFYT WIATT)
(Mr. Vichien Phongsathom)
UseFmunssuns

Chairman of the Board
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The Audit Committee of the Company composed of
3 Independent Directors namely, with Mr. Udom
Chatiyanont as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul and Mr. Katiya Greigarn as
members of the Audit Committee.

During 2007, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings,
for the purpose of reviewing and advising the Company’s
business in line with its scope of responsibilities

designated by the Board of Directors as follows:

1. Reviewed the Company and subsidiaries’ financial
reports —both quarterly and annual with managementand

auditors to ensure accuracy and transparency.

2. Reviewed the Company’s internal controls and
suggested to improve internal control’s quality including
risk management analysis format, to ensure their

effectiveness.

3. Reviewed the Company’s internal control and intemal
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audit procedures to ensure sufficiency and suitability.

4. Proposed the appointment of the Company’s auditor
and the auditing fee for the year 2007 to the Board of
Directors for approval of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2007.

5. Considered reasonably of connected transactions,
which could have conflicts of interest with the Company
in the year 2007 before propose to the Board of
Directors to approval from the Shareholders’ meeting.
6. The Audit Committee regularly submitted all Minutes

of the meeting to the Board of Directors.

In addition to, the Audit Committees proposed to the
Board of Directors to appoint Emst & Young Office
Limited be the Company auditors of the year 2008 for
the Annual General

approved in Meeting of

Shareholders.

lumnunaenssuNIsATINd Y

On behalf of the Audit Committee

(MNBYAN FABIUUN)
(Mr. Udom Chatiyanont)

U5HIUNTTUNITATIVAO L

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
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I have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of Premier Technology Public Company
Limited and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2007 and
2006 and the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the separate financial statementsof
Premier Technology Public Company Limited for the
same years. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management as to their
correctness and the completeness of the presentation.My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards requirethat
I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.l

believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Premier Technology Public Company
Limited and its subsidiary and of Premier Technology

Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2007 and
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2006, and the results of their operations, and cash flows
for the years then ended, in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial
statements, I draw attention to the matter as discussed in
Note 4 to the financial statements whereby, effective 1
January 2007, the Company changed its accounting
policy for recording investments in subsidiary in the
separate financial statements from the equity method to
the cost method. The Company has thus restated the
separate financial statements as at 31 December 2006
and for the year then ended to reflect this accounting

change.

Siraporn Ouaanunkun

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3844

Ernst & Young Office Limited

Bangkok: 20 February 2008
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 14,453,859 79,680,020 1,476,069 64,004,104
Current inves tment - fixed deposits with banks 7,414,182 1,250 7,414,182 1,250
Trade accounts receivable
Related parties 6 3,076,106 1,528,572 - -
Unrelated parties 393,446,678 411,308,522 - -
Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts (7,916,172) (4,962,841 - -
Trade accounts receivable - net 7 388,606,612 407,874,253 - -
Inventories - net 8 58,177,350 101,212,104 - -
Other current assets
Withholding income tax deducted at source 10,521,159 20,705,217 643,541 637,688
Accrued service income 5,506,031 11,367,811 - -
Prepaid service cost 37,519,984 17,519,534 - -
Others 9,455,171 7,939,758 356,425 402,371
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 531,654,348 646,299,947 9,890,217 65,045,413
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted fixed deposits with banks 23.2 35,483,590 24,953,224 - -
Account receivable from transfer of rights
of claim - rel ated party - net 6 - - - -
Investment in subsidiary 9 - - 117,626,861 117,626,861
Other long-term investments - net 10 - 2,250,000 - 2,250,000
Leasehold right and equipment - net 11 137,201,857 151,650,506 2,012 -
Other non-currrent assets
Prepaid rental expenses 6,022,634 6,442,634 - -
Deposit on share - related party 6, 23.5 18,100,000 - 18,100,000 -
Others 3,634,563 5,095,509 - 521,673
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200,442,644 190,391,873 135,728,873 120,398,534
TOTAL ASSETS 732,096,992 836,691,820 145,619,090 185,443,947
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate fimancial statements
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENTLIABILITIES
Trade accounts payable 11 242,070,730 350,843,741 - -
Amounts due to related parties 6 513,749 3,018,898 - 3,018,898
Accounts payable - factoring company 7 21,393,453 45,420,169 - -
Current portion of long-term loans 12 4,863,263 7,535,896 - -
Current portion of long-term liabilities 13 38,974,427 33,327,865 - -
Current portion of long-term liabilities
under rehabilitation plan 14 2,274,521 2,393,699 2,274,521 2,393,699
Other current liabilities
Accrued expenses 106,279,688 88,159,967 1,332,405 160,023
Deferred service income 62,520,489 29,250,043 - -
Corporate income tax payable - 14,451,422 - 14,451,422
Others 18,472,516 23,322,315 1,782 1,193,337
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 497,362,836 597,724,015 3,608,708 21,217,379
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loans - net current portion 12 1,686,543 6,251,630 - -
Long-term liabilities - net of current portion 13 32,014,776 39,062,198 - -
Long-term liabilities under rehabil itation plan - net
of current portion 14 4,202,521 7,329,418 4,202,521 7,329,418
Other non-current liabilities 252,000 252,000 - -
TOTALNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 38,155,840 52,895,246 4,202,521 7,329,418
TOTALLIABILITIES 535,518,676 650,619,261 7,811,229 28,546,797

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY
Share capital
Registered
142,440,489 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 142,440,489 142,440,489 142,440,489 142,440,489
Issuedand fully paid up
141,944,471 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 141,944,471 141,944,471 141,944,471 141,944,471
Company's shares held by subsidiary 16 230,175) (230,175) - -
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 17 3,150,000 2,400,000 750,000 -
Unappropriated (Deficit) 16,389,427 12,552,679 (4,886,610 14,952,679
Equity attributable to Company's sharehol ders 161,253,723 156,660,975 137,807,861 156,897,150
Minority interest - Equity attributable to minority
shareholders of s ubsidiary 35,324,593 29,405,584 - -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 196,578,316 186,072,559 137,807,861 156,897,150
TOTALLIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 732,096,992 836,691,820 145,619,090 185,443,947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
(Unit: B aht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)

REVENUES

Sales 1,092,367,620 1,156,547,716 - -

Service income 306,810,556 283,533,932 - -

Remuneration from transfer of right 18 - 23,173,009 - 23,173,009

Gain onsales of investment 19 - 43,388,052 - 43,388,052

Other income 20,689,583 26,025,486 2,842,419 642,854
TOTAL REVENUES 1,419,867,759 1,532,668,195 2,842,419 67,203,915
EXPENSES

Cost of sales and services 1,028,420,215 1,110,032,135 - -

Selling and administrative expenses 345,122,815 318,946,125 7,737,261 7,726,798
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,373,543,030 1,428,978,260 7,737,261 7,726,798
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST EXPENSES

AND INCOME TAX 46,324,729 103,689,935 (4,894,842) 59,477,117
INTEREST EXPENSES (5,914,525) (9,075,636) - -
CORPORATE INCOME TAX (15,710,000) (24,877,564) - (15,281,673)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 24,700,204 69,736,735 (4,894,842) 44,195,444
NET INCOME IN RESPECT OF MINORITY INTEREST (5,919,009) (5,108,258) - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 18,781,195 64,628,477 (4,894,842) 44,195,444
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 21

Net income (loss) 0.13 0.46 (0.03) 0.31

The accompanyingnotes are an integral part of the financial statem ents.
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Balance as at 31 December 2 005

Deficit offset against statutoryreserve
and premium on sales of assets to related co mpany

Share capital redu ction

Deficit offset against share premium

Decrease in Company's shares heldbysubsidiary
due to share capital reduction

Net income for the year

Net income respect o fminority interest

Balance as at 31 December 2 006

Dividend paid

Transferred tolegal reserve

Net income for the year

Net income inrespect o fminority interest

Balance as at 31 December 2007

Note

15

15

22

PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated finan dial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements.

Minority interest-
Issued Premum Premium on sales Retained earnings (deficit) equity attributable
and paid-up (deficit) Company's shares of assets o Appropriated - Unappropriated  to minority shareho lders
share capital on ordinaryshares held by subsidiary  related company statutory reserve (deficit) of subsidiary Total
1419,444,710 (1,009370,805) (2,301,750) 58,596,310 6,947,801 (383349,343) 24,297 326 114,264,249
- - - (58,596,310) (4,547,801) 63,144,111 - -
(1.277,500,239) 1,277500,239 - - - - - -
- (268,129,434) - - - 268,129,434 - -
- - 2,071,575 - - - - 2,071,575
- - - - - 64,628,477 - 64,628,477
- - - - - - 5108258 5,108,258
141,944,471 - (230,175) - 2,400,000 12552,679 29,405 584 186,072,559
_ - - - - (14,194,447) - (14,194,447)
- - - - 750,000 (750,000) - -
- - - - - 18,781,195 - 18,781,195
- - - - - - 5,919,009 5,919,009
141,944,471 - (230,175) - 3,150,000 16,389,427 35,324,593 196,578,316
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
(Unit: Baht)

(

LIMITED

N

Separate financial statements

Issued Premium on sales Retained earnings (deficit)
and paid-up Premium (deficit) Company's shares of assets to Appropriated- Unappropriated
Note share capital onordinary shares held by subsidiary ~ relhted company statutory reserve (deficit) Total

Balance as at 31 December 2005 - as previously reported 1,419444,710 (1,009370,805) (2,301,750) 58,596,310 4,547,801 (380,949,343) 89,966,923
Cumulative effect of the change in accounting

policy for investments in subsidiary 4 - - 2,301,750 - - 20,433,033 22,734,783
Balance as at 31 December 2005 - as restated 1,419444.710 (1,009,370,805) - 58,596,310 4,547,801 (360,516,310) 112,701,706
Deficit offsetagainst statutory reserve

and premium on sales of assets to related c ompany 15 - - - (58,596,310) (4,547,801) 63,144,111 -
Share capital reduction 15 (1,277,500239) 1,277,500,239 - - - - -
Deficit offse tagainst share premium 15 - (268,129434) - - - 268,129,434 -
Net income for the year - restated - - - - - 44,195,444 44,195,444
Balance as at 31 December 2006 141944 471 - - - - 14,952,679 156,897,150
Balance as at 31 December 2006 - as previously reported 141944471 - (230,175) - - 14,952,679 156,666,975
Cumulative effect of the change in accounting

policy for investments in subsidiary 4 - - 230,175 - - - 230,175
Balance as at 31 December 2006 - as restated 141944 471 - - - - 14,952,679 156,897,150
Dividend paid 22 - - - - - (14,194,447) (14,194,447)
Transfer to legal reserve - - - - 750,000 (750,000) -
Net loss for the year - - - - - (4,894,842) (4,894,842)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 141944 471 - - - 750,000 (4,886,610) 137,807,861

The accompanying notes are an inte gral part of the financ ial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) 18,781,195 64,628,477 (4,894842) 44,195,444
Adjustmentstoreconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities :
Net income attributable to minority interest 5,919,009 5,108,258 - -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,953,331 2,918,525 - -
Alllowance for diminution in value of inventories 624,253 120,623 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 66,994,294 70,913,245 222 3,108,064
Gain on sales of investment in other company 93,527) (43,388,052) (93527) (43,388,052)
Gain on sales of equipment (2,105,625) (862,066) - (351,719)
Written-off equipment 762,200 - - -
Decrease in Company'sshare held by subsidiary
due to share capital reduction - 2,071,575 - -
Income (loss) from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 93,835,136 101,510,585 (4,988,147) 3,563,737
(Increase) decrease inoperating assets
Trade accounts receivable 16314,310 (143,800,498) - -
Amountsdue from related parties - 682,606 - 682,606
Inventories 42,410,501 (78,566,393) - -
Other current assets (5,470,025) (8,361,308) 40093 558753
Other non-current assets 1,460,946 (248,392) 521673 -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable (108,773,011) 179,551,597 - -
Amountsdue torelated parties (2,505,149) 2,370,790 (3,018,898) 2,380,917
Other current liabilities 32,088,946 57,272,933 (14,470595) 14,930,601
Net cash from (usedin) operating activities 69,361,634 110,411,920 21,915874) 22,116,614

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CASHFLOW STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in current investment (7,412,932) (18) (7,412932) (18)
Increase in fixed deposits subject to encumbrance (10,530,366) (1,239,334) - -
Proceeds from sales of equipment 3,050,878 5,307,862 - 353961
Acquisition of equipment (29,310,714) (21,160,806) (2234) -
Cash receipt from sale of investment in other company - 46,388,052 - 46,388,052
Cash return from investment in other company 2,343,527 - 2,343527 -
Deposit on shares paidtorelated company (18,100,000) - (18,100000) -
Net cash from (usedin) investing activities (59,959,607) 29,295,756 23,171639) 46,741,995
CASH FLOWS FROMFINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of trust receipts - (55,250,252) - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - factoring company (24,026,716) 12,781,654 - -
Repayment of long-term loans (7,237,720) (2,670,337) - -
Cash receipt from long-term loan 10,584,830 - - -
Repayment of long-term liabilities (36,508,080) (35,933,611) - -
Repayment of long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan (3,246,075) 9,429,160) (3,246075) 9,651,031)
Dividend paid (14,194,447) - (14,194 447) -
Net cash used in financing activities (74,628,208) (90,501,706) (17,440522) 9,651,031)
Net increase (decease) in cash and cash equivalents (65,226,161) 49,205,970 (62,528035) 59,207,578
Cash and cash equivalents at begiming of the year 79,680,020 30,474,050 64,004,104 4,796,526
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14,453,859 79,680,020 1,476 069 64,004,104
Supplementary disclosures of cash flows information :
Cash paid during the year for
Interest expenses 6,859,641 9,623,002 393699 624,295
Corporate income tax and withholding income tax 16,411,609 14,804,592 5853 830,251
Non-cash transactions
Assets under finance lease agreements 24,522,390 73,633,381 - -

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
AND 2006

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Premier Technology Public Company Limited (“the
Company”) is a public company incorporate and
domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally
engaged in a holding company, with a registered office
located at One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,

Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet, Bangkok.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting standards enunciated under
the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The
presentation of the financial statements has been madein
compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of
the Department of Business Development dated 14
September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E.
2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosedin
the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include

the financial statements of Premier Technology Public

Company Limited and the following subsidiary:
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Company’s nane Nature ofbusiness incoporation shareholding as at3 1 December 31 December
2550 2549 2550 2549 2550 2549
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
2 2 3 Y 3
080 080 080 980 080 PRLIGH
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
a o Y a d a < d o w ° '
UIBFN ﬂWﬂIﬂi ADUNIAUADT FALAUT 1NA mwmﬂiﬂmﬂimmx u],‘VIEJ 80 80 96 92 100 96
Datapro Computer Systems Company Limited Q‘ﬂ N3 ﬂfﬂﬁm ﬁama{ Thailand
Distributor of computer
software and hardware
kY v a o a o ' . .
V) YOAANANIEUINIUTHND UALUITHNYD Y b) Material balances and transactions between

the Company and its subsidiary have been eliminated

from the consolidated financial statements. Investments

in the subsidiary as recorded in the Company's books of
account are eliminated against the equity of the

subsidiary.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present
investments in subsidiary presented under the cost
method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the

public.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has
issued Notifications No. 9/2550,38/2550 and 62/2550
regarding Accounting Standards. The notifications
mandate the use of the following new Accounting
Standards.

a) Thai Accounting Standards which are effective

for the current year
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TAS 44 (revised 2007) Consolidated Financial
Statements and Separate
Financial Statements
TAS 45 (revised 2007) Investmentsin
Associates
TAS 46 (revised 2007) Interests in Joint
Ventures
These accounting standards become effective for the
financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or affer
1 January 2007. During the first quarter of the current
year, the Company changed its accounting policy for
recording investments in subsidiary in the separate
financial statements in order to comply with the revised
Thai Accounting Standards No. 44 as discussed in
Note 4.
b) Thai Accounting Standards which are not
effective for the current year
TAS 25 (revised 2007) Cash Flow Statements
TAS 29 (revised 2007) Leases
TAS 31 (revised 2007) Inventores
TAS 33 (revised 2007) Borrowing Costs
TAS 35 (revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements
TAS 39 (revised 2007) Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
TAS 41 (revised 2007) Interim Financial
Reporting
TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations
TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TASS51 Intangible Assets

These accounting standards will become effective for

the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or
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after 1 January 2008. The management has assessed the
effect of these revised accounting standards and believes
that they will not have any significant impact on the
financial statements for the year in which they are

initially applied.

4. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR
RECORD ING INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY IN
THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the first quarter of the current year, the
Company changed its accounting policy for recording
investments in subsidiary in the separate financial
statements from the equity method to the cost method,in
compliance with Accounting Standard No. 44 (Revised
2007) regarding “Consolidated Financial Statementsand
Separate Financial Statements”, under which investments
in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates
are to be presented in the separate financial statements
under the cost method.

In this regard, the Company has restated the previous
period’s separate financial statements as though the
investments in the subsidiary had originally been
recorded using the cost method. The change has the
effect of decreasing net income in the separate income
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 by Baht
23.7 million (Baht 0.17 per share) (2006: decreasing net
income by Baht 20.4 million (Baht 0.14 per share). The
cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy has
been presented under the heading of “Cumulative effect
of the change in accounting policy for investments in
subsidiary” in the separate statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity.

Such change in accounting policy affects only the
accounts related to investments in subsidiary in the

Company’s separate financial statements, with no effect
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to the consolidated financial statements.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
5.1 Revenue recognition
Sale of goods
Sales of goods are recognized when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding
value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting
discounts and allowances.
Rendering of service
Service revenue is recognized when services have
been rendered taking into account the stage of
completion. The Company assessed the stage of
completion in accordance with the services rendered in
proportion to the total services to be rendered.
5.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
cash at bank, and all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and not subject

to withdrawal restrictions.

5.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net
realizable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated collection losses that may
occur from the collection of receivables. The allowance
is based on collection experience and analysis of debtor
aging.

5.4 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (under the
first-in, first-out method and the specific identification
method) and net realizable value.

5.5 Investments

a) Investments in subsidiary are accounted for in the
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separate financial statements using the cost method.

b) Investments in non-marketable equity securities,
which the Company classifies as other investments, are
stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in
value (if any).

5.6 Leasehold rights and equipment and
depreciation

Leasehold rights and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and depreciation and
allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Amortization of leasehold rights and depreciation of
equipment are calculated by reference to their costs using
the straight-line basis, over the following estimated
useful lives:-

Leasehold rights and leasehold improvements

- lease period, 5 years
Furniture and office equipment

- 3,5 years

Depreciation and amortization are included in
determining income.

No depreciation has been provided on assets under

installation.

5.7 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals
that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether
directly or indirectly, or which are under common control
with the Company.

They also include associated companies and
individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company that gives them significant
influence over the Company, key management personnel,
directors and officers with authority in the planning and
direction of the Company’s operations.

5.8 Long-termleases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all
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the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lower
of'the fair value of the leased assets and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables, while the interest element is charged
to the income statements over the lease period. The
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease period in case of the Company expects not to

purchase such assets at the end of lease period.

5.9 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht
at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction dates.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
outstanding at the balance sheet date are translated into
Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet
date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in
determining income.

5.10 Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in the income statement. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

to sell and value in use.

5.11 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the
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social security fund and provident fund are recognizedas
expenses when incurred.

5.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

5.13 Income tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on
the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax
legislation.

5.14 Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions in
certain circumstances, affecting amounts reported in
these financial statements and related notes. Actual

results could differ from these estimates.

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaryhad
significant business transactions with related parties,
which have been concluded on commercial terms and

bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business
between the Company and those companies. Below is a

summary of those transactions.
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margin is approximately 3 to 7 percent while price of
service are based on the contract price, which is price in
the ordinary course of business. However pricingdepends
on the type of product or service and the pricing policy
may change according to the type of business and the
market situation at the time of the transaction.

6.2 On 10 March 2006, the Company entered into an
agreement to transfer to a related company the option to
purchase certain land and construction thereon whichhad
been transferred to a bank in settlement of indebtedness
under a debt restructuring agreement (the debt
restructuring agreement granted the Company the option
to buy back the land and construction thereon withinone
year from the date they were transferred to the bank).
The Company received related remuneration amounting
to Baht 7.5 million.

The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2007
and 2006 between the Company and those related

companies are as follows:
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a o o V1 Y a 4' d' Y U
NHUAMHUY — NINMITNNYIVOIINYU
Deposit on share - related party
V5 wSidies e uniaea $1ia

Premier Fission Capital Company Limited

S o A aa v
ﬂﬁuﬂ1ﬂﬁﬂ_ﬂﬂi’]uﬂﬂﬁliﬂﬂﬁ’)ﬁ -

<

a Ad v o
DINITNUNYIVOINY
Account receivable from trans fer of rights of claim - rel ated

party

Ao oA A o o
VIEN WILVYT LLNHLLVJ?"IL%’E]?Q 109

Premier Manufacturing Company Limited
Wn: Arlseinmsvietuamusesu
Less : Deferred gain from sales of investments
A 1 a aa v

smgnwuﬂmamquﬂauaﬂﬁnmnsm -

a Y ~

NIMITUNLIVIINY — gND
Total accoun t receiv able from tr ansfer of rights of claim -

related party — net

JUMIRUTIN

Consolidated financial statements

(WU28: VIN)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIRURANIZAING

Separate financial statements

[oe]
W
wn
(=}

[
(=3
(=]
~

1,353,008

601,084

379088

210761

218986

183259

114404

15,516

[oe]
[
A=l

[
(=3
(=]
(o))

658078

425,188

208289

139851

15,515

81,651

55 5

007

(=}
[oe]
A=l

[
[
(=3
(=]
(o))

3,076,106

1,528,572

18,100000

18,100000 -

85,000,000

(85,000,000)

85,000000

(85,000,000)

85,000000 85,000000

(85,000,000) (85,000,000)
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Consolidated financial statements

JUMIRUTIN

(WU28: VIN)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIRURANIZAING

Separate financial statements

2550 2549 550 2549
2007 2006 2007 2006
dmiRoms e tesiiu
Amounts due to related parties
V5N 183 vEiflos 1 - 2,483,898 - 2,483,898
Seri Premier Company Limited
V3 105 1wees sl §1da 468078 - - -
Seri Center Management Company Limited
By 45,671 535000 - 535000
Others
sundmHRamsfiReTea i 513,749 3,018,898 - 3,018,898
Total amounts due to related parties
anviawduan louansisensed— nanisd Accounts receivable from transfer of rights of claim -
4 9 o
INYIVDINY related party
Tulasuanavedil 2548 vina 1dv 1013 ua anu During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company sold
aw 1 1 1 Ao aa J
6]le'Ui!'‘]s«l‘i/lfJf]EJ 2 I Glﬁl!ﬂﬂi‘kl‘i/l WIWYT LLiJ‘Lm‘lLL“V‘Iﬂ 190 investments in two subsidiaries to Premier
Fetia Taeiid lsnnmsvietua muﬁwmu 143.6 Manufacturing Company Limited with a gain on the sale
k4
a1 nazwseunwiuusEna lamhdyanTo udans of the investments amounting to Baht 143.6 million.The
~ 9 dy a 9 YA " AW A A JdaA .
13 fjﬂiﬂﬂmjﬁ Huua mu“lwqamm UITHNNTLUYT ¥D Company also transferred to the related company rights
o w a o a2 A d o o 4 . . . .
119 Lz UTEM WIWes Law o nna oo uF 10 I of claim in loans and receivable of Premier CE Company
= o A a I o .. . .
fooanuraeo o JUN 30 W fHAINIYU 2548 NIRTE RRTERT Limited and Premier Home Appliance Company
JU70 dnannuaz 20 d1uuIn arudiay Idun Limited, with balances as at 30 November 2005,
Aaw A Y o o ' ' . [ Jo
VIENNNITeIRUAINa 1 Taslinme uununis To u amounting to Baht 70 million and Baht 20 million,
a adg o a % a o o o . . ., . . -
ansilusuidu 90 d1wn Fewidna lasudise respectively, for which it is to receive remuneration
RUN9am$1uIu 5 81111 o 3ui 31 Funau 2550 amounting to Baht 90 million. The Company has
VINTuiingeaRuA s UAMe UUNUN 1T To UaANT received partial remuneration of Baht 5 million, and asat
~ o I o A :3’ @ ey
58n501$11IU 85 N Lﬂuummqﬂ HUATU A YU 31 December 2007 the balance of Baht 85 million was
Toudnsisondos-nansmneadesnulusuga uaz recorded as account receivable from transfer of rights of
a o v o a g (o . . .
VTENI9zNe0 8T UF1T el 111U 5 e 999 claim - related party. Such remuneration, on which no
Y 4 g To A @ (= . . . . .
az 17 a1 Gudwa uin 1 Sunaw 2549 Taglud interest is charged, is to be paid in 5 annual installments
A Y , < 4 y o
msanaendy ed1elsnain tienuseiasede of Baht 17 million each, commencing from 1 December
soune UTEN la¥zaonis gﬂi}ﬁﬂi NNITVIITY 2006. However, for reasons of prudence, the Company
amuawnandumidnugs  dmwuinldiunia has deferred the recognition of the gains on sale of the
1ozl 2550 97 Annual Report 2007
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Yo o a U a a A 9
%z“lﬂiwwamummammumﬂa wansisenioslu

4
o v W 1

= A QYA - = )
@lﬂﬂullﬁ$Lﬂuslﬁﬂjﬂllﬂ1ﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂlﬂfJ'J"'U’E)\'lﬂuﬂQﬂﬁTJ
)

AR ULNUNT TUNITUAZALT NS

Nitl 2550 USEMuazuSEndes ldoeRua o u A1
dy a o < 9 1 Y a
WeszauuazRuinmie liun nssunsua g §us s
3 o a Aa o
A1y 28.7 § 110 (R WIZVO VT ENA: 0.4
A1) (2549: 203 31UV IM MWIZVBIVT TN 0.3
Y
F1um)

v
7M5zAlsEAUNUUT ENED Y

v
vsEnaimszanmsa1lseduldduusndos

awinan i lumnemasgnouaunstuie 23.1

A v
7. antuHNInN
A g v o A o
goANIUNADUDIGNHMUNITAT WU IUN 31 UIIAY

csycs' Y o/ o A=
2550 Uag 2549 HENATNDYHUNAIA NUDIIN IUND I

4
=

o o Y v
Avuasse 1daa

Baht 85 million of the investments until the payment is
received.

Directors and management’s remuneration

In 2007 the Company and its subsidiary paid salaries,
meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and
management totaling Baht 28.7 million (The Company
only: Baht 0.4 million) (2006: Baht 20.3 million, The
Company only: Baht 0.3 million).

Guarantee obligations with related parties

The Company has outstanding guarantee obligations
with its related parties, as described in Note 23.1 to the

financial statements.

7. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The outstanding balances of trade accounts
receivable as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 are aged

based on due date as follows:

v

a9y o
DYNUANYITS
Ages ofreceivable
a A Y
NINITNLNYIVBNNU
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
o 12 o o
ENllll INMHUAWITS
Not yet due
Y o
ANWITS
Past due
1a A
1a1Au 3 1Pou
Within 3 months
A
3-6 10U
3 - 6 months
=)
6-12 1ADU

6 - 12 months

(MU29: UIN)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIEUTIN

Consolidated

N
W
W
(=]

254

Nl

[~
(=3
(=1
3
[53

006

1,936,759 1,150,907

1,139,347 377665
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(#ae: UM)
(Unit: Baht)
UMIRUTI
Consolidated
2550 2549
2007 2006
11ANI 12 1Heu - -
Longer than 12 months
39U 3,076,106 1,528,572
Total
Wn: ﬁnﬁawﬁmﬁmzqmﬂ - (425,188)
Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts
ans 3,076,106 1,103,384
Net
fomsii lifead iy
Unrelated parties
FaluBadmuaingy 339945634 373673314
Not yet due
Mmetnse
Past due
Taifu 3 heu 33,909061 17,535997
Within 3 months
3-6 10U 9,625,271 12,694976
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 Hou 2,140,108 5,871,557
6 - 12 months
I 12 1Hew 7,826,604 1,532,678
Longer than 12 months
37U 393446,678 411308522
Total
Wn: ﬁnﬁawﬁmﬁmzqmﬂ (7.916,172) 4,537653)
Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts
qw% 385,530,506 406,770,869
Net
gﬂwﬁyms #msdh - qnd 388,606,612 407,874,253
Trade accounts receivable - net
& & v o o
YOAAANADUDIRNHUUNITAT U IUN 31 FUIIAY The balance of trade accounts receivable as at 31
v
2550 185 auqﬂwﬁmiﬁ’ﬁhmu 23.7 §1nn (2549: December 2007 included trade receivables amounting to
523 &) Fasindes @ Toudntison o afive Baht 23.7 million (2006: Baht 52.3 million) which the
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o

Yo o dy Y 1 Aaw A @
185051529 ngnuil unvsinumlaaeiwmiudgyan
Toueanstens o 4 (Factoring Agreement) Tasna

4 4 1
gansureangnrimnusas Ny 2y ludyy) vin

Y o a ay ~ < dy dyd' a o
Fjﬁuiﬂuﬁﬂ‘ﬁ"lllﬁ’]ll'ﬁﬂlﬁﬂﬂlﬂuﬁuﬂ'lﬂqﬂﬁuﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ
A4y o

1 a Aaqg Y ao 1 I 9 o 1
EJEJSJIEJuﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬂil«lﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ]mﬂu@‘]ﬂi%‘ﬁuﬂﬂN‘]ﬂi&’llﬂ

Av Yo
V3ENgsuTou

a v A
8. aunIndtiae

subsidiary has assigned its rights over collection to
factoring company in accordance with the factoring
agreements with interest as stipulated in the agreements.
If the assignee is unable to make collection from the
subsidiary’s debtors, the subsidiary agrees to pay the

outstanding debt balances to the assignee.

8. INVENTORIES

(#a0: Um)
(Unit: Baht)
WMIRUIIN
Consolidated financial statements
2550 2549
2007 2006
Auidusag 50,603,448 58,910,007
Finished goods
FUMILNINNN 8,773,179 42,877,121
Goods in transit
39U 59,376,627 101,787,128
Total
wn: finﬁﬂmmmg,aﬁw 23dUMAUNTD (1,199,277) (575,024)
Less : Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
Fumnando - qnd 58,177,350 101,212,104
Inventories — net
511531l 2550 Annual Repott 2007
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\l
9. Fuaanuluu3Eng oe 9. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
#20: V)
UMIRURWIZAING
Separate financia stataments
FouTHn uiSondszudn daauRuamu I
Company’s name Paid-up capitad Shareholding percentage Cost
2550 2549 2550 2549 2550 2549
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Wunm Wunm Jooay Joony @suiyalmi)
Thousand Thousand (%) %) (Restated)
Baht Baht
151 mi 15 neuiawmes Fafiud $afia 30,000 30,000 80 80 220.787,200 220.787,200
Datapro Computer SystemsCompany Limited
¥n: midems doen 1dua muluuTindos (103,160339) (103,160339)
Less : Provision for loss in valueof nvestments in
subsidiary
sawRuamuluniimges — qns 117626,861 117626861
Investments in subsidiaty —net
v d
10. @NSMSW e Qﬂﬂim 10. LEASEHOLD RIGHT AND EQUIPMENT
(20 V)
(Unit: Baht)
SUMIRUIIN
Consolidaed finandal staements
1A5 040 ALIA WAL Funindszning
v
gunsaidninau fadq
ansmsn Fumiture and office Assets under 37U
Leasehold night equipment installation Total
NN
Cost
Ui 31 Fuay 2549 47,400,000 331403,801 299,708 379,103,509
31 Decamber2 006
oy - 45,375,760 8,457,344 53,833,104
Additions
Mg - (18,792,487) - (18,792,487)
o A
511531l 2550 101 Annual Repott 2007
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.
(U VM)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMSRUT
Consolidaed fnandal staements
1AT 40 LA dWLaY Funsndizning
gunsaidninau fnia
ANTMIN Fumiture and office Asses under 77U
Leasehold night equipment installation Total

Disposals
Towdh - 8,686,852 - 8,686,852
Transferin
Tousen - - (8,686852) (8,686852)
Transferout
ﬁrﬁ 31 5U21AN 2550 47,400,000 366.673,926 70,200 414,144,126
31 Decanber2 007
Audousmazan
Accumulated depredation
$uit 31 unan 2549 30,286,337 195213,510 - 225499,847
31 Decanber2 006
Andensimdmsul 2,059,795 64,514,499 - 66,574,294
Depreciation forthe year
Adeusmdmsudniisnnie - (17,085,028) - (17,085,028)
Depreciation disposalk
Fuft 31 funaw 2550 32,346,132 242,642,981 - 274989113
31 Decanber2007
Auitomsdem
Allowance for impairmentloss
Suil 31 uaan 2549 1,953,156 - - 1,953,156
31 Decanber2 006
Suii 31 Fuan 255 1,953,156 - - 1,953,156
31 Decanber2 007
yamgnba Dl
Net bookvalue
51;“7; 315UAN 2549 15,160,507 136,190,291 299,708 151,650,506
31 Decanber2 006
51;“7; 315UAN 2550 13,100,712 124,030,945 70,200 137201,857
31 Decanber2 007
mideusimamsuil
Depreciation for the y ear
712549 39 Fnmm sweg ludunumsuinn shuiimdes weglum¥selumssnmunm) 70,485 463
2006 Baht 39million included in sewvice st and thebdace in seling and adminstrative expenses) —
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(U VM)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMSRUT
Consolidaed fnandal staements
1AT 40 LA dWLaY Funsndizning
gunsaidninau fnia
ANTMIN Fumiture and office Asses under 77U
Leasehold night equipment installation Total
72550 37 &wum sweg ludunumsuinn shuiimdes weglumdselumsenmuinn) 66,574294
2007 Baht37million included in sevice wst, and thebdance in selling and adminstrative expenses)
(#H: VIN)
(Unit: Baht)
WMIRURWIZAING
Separate financial statements
19 een nust aaz
gunsaidninau
Fumiture and office 39U
equipment Total
MU
Cost
$uil 31 Funaw 2549 - -
31 December 2006
Foriiy 2,234 2,234
Disposals
$uit 31 $urtau 2550 2,234 2,234
31 December 2007
Audousmazan
Accumulated depreciation
$ut 31 $uriau 2549 - -
31 December 2006
Andeusimdmiil 222 222
Depreciation for the year
$uit 31 $urtau 2550 222 222
31 December 2007
yamgninmlyd
Net book value
$uii 31 Funaw 2549 - -
31 December 2006
$uit 31 $urtan 2550 2,012 2,012
31 December 2007
511531l 2550 103 Annual Repott 2007
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oA 0w TqQu a
audensmd vl (sawegluml el umsuims)

Depreciation for the y ear (include in selling and adminis trative expenses)

1) 2549
2006
1 2550
2007

\\
i

3,100,281

222

4 Yo ] A A ao 1 < Y
f‘Jq‘]_]ﬂimﬂ?ﬂiﬁﬁfﬂufﬂuﬂsﬁ”lﬂWELQHWUTHVI?J@ IS A

a

2 Y Y = o &
"lf\ﬁ')ﬂJlLﬁﬂ\ﬂﬂinJﬂ"li"UNﬁuui"lﬂﬁglﬂﬂﬂﬂ\iu

Equipment leased by a subsidiary under financial

leases, which are included in the above is as follows

Uy esdunI ndmy dyy uinmsiin
Cost - finance leased assets

vin: sudeus imazau

Less : Accumulated depreciation

M ys — qns

Net book value

(MUY VIN)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIRUTI

Consolidated financial statements

2550 2549
2007 2006
130,189,420 118,665,415

(70,566,789) 45,668,925)

59,622,631 72,996,490

N 31 FUNAN 2550 USEN uazuIHnde ol
oo = A Y [ 9
giUnsad UG AR uTo uT IR IHUALA LA 53 195
aueg s muuesdunsndaana i usiuaudu
U528 126.6 31N (2549 85.6 A1UUIN) (AU

a a W =
MIRURNIZUTENA: 13%)

11. UM
o A o A P ~
A JUN 31 FUNAN 2549 4D AA KA D UD U 1H
v Ao v y & Y o
MsmveauTEnge s las 1w mIN1IA19 14U 43.9
) & aw Yo o Y4 a A q9
A s Hndes lamdyandoutuie 19 luns

F13AIAUA1YPT HNEo s TAsl S 1IHUATITEA Y

As at 31 December 2007, certain equipment items of
the Company and it subsidiary have been fully
depreciated but are still in use. The original cost, before
deducting accumulated depreciation, of those assets
amounted to Baht 126.6 million (2006: Baht 85.6

million). The Company only: Nil.

11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - TRADE

As at 31 December 2006, the balance of accounts
payable - trade of a subsidiary included a creditor witha
balance of Baht 43.9 million, with which the subsidiary

has entered into a loan agreement to provide funds to

1eu1l5E911) 2550
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A1vuas1se n1elunied dseneudlesienis
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gage 11l

make payment for goods purchased of the subsidiary.
The loans are to be repaid within 120 days from the due
date for payment for the goods, with interest charged as

stipulated in the agreement.

12. LONG-TERM LOANS
Long-term loans (including current portion) of a

subsidiary consist of the followings:

Ruituszezonnnsuias

Long-term loans from banks

A yA &

NUNYNISYSY1IOU

Other long-term loans

37U

Total

o 1 ode o o &

wn: muwmmwummizmﬂcluwuaﬂ

Less: Current portion

A yA a 1 oAes o o 24 =
RUDINISISYTI — qﬂﬁﬂ1ﬂﬁ1uﬂﬂiﬂ1ﬁuﬂmﬁ$ﬂWHGIM‘HL!\HJ

Long-term loans - net of current portion

(#d2e: 1IMN)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIRUTIW

Consolidated financial statements

2550 2549

2007 2006
3,000,000 9,000,000
3,549,806 4,787,526
6,549,806 13,787,526
(4,863,263) (7,535,896)
1,686,543 6,251,630

a

Rudduszezennnmnaisvesus inde o uitu
YA o a o A
pauawdyynlszilszuensoundnuaaiui 11
wpeu 2544 Ausnas lulsemandanila v e Mo u
fAunsFrszRuduanQudnnuin® Taereusisea u
a o I =3
Rudusnu 40 Srumidhusielasuranielu 79

9 4
Tudwaaeunsngny 2544 wiewae nide luda s,
T Y " d o Ao 2
MLR @91 fudandenandsziulasuitimg damn
a Jya ad 9 a o o dyﬂ/ 9/ Y
umslgansisenses iEna sz ntAIs fua1 ey

4
YO IUTEN A wELH U AN

Long-term loan from bank of the subsidiary is along-
term loan under a composition agreement with a local
commercial bank, dated 11 April 2001, under which the
terms of repayment of a defaulted bank overdraft were
relaxed. The principal of Baht 40 million is to be repaid
in quarterly installments within 7 years from July 2001,
together with interest charged at MLR per annum. The
above loan is guaranteed by the Company and if thebank
exercises its right of claim in this respect the Company

will settle the debt with its shares, in accordance withthe

1eu1l5E911) 2550
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business rehabilitation plan.

Other long-term loans of the subsidiary represent
loans obtained from a company for use in the purchaseof
assets of the subsidiary. The loans are to be repaid in
monthly installments within 3 years from the dates
specified in the agreements, together with interest as

stipulated in the agreements.

13. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities (including current portion) of

the subsidiary consist of the followings:

” y
AU Ay UMM iU — gninneonidissedaiie

Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of deferred interest

v v

) o A
LTHULBIY
Hire purchase payable
37U
Total
o 1A= o o &
#n: dauitedmuadszn e Tunildl
Less : Current portion
s a ' A= o o 2
niduszezen — quinndrunnsimuadszniteunil

Long-term liabilities - net of current portion

(MUY VIN)
JUMSRUTIN
2550 2549
2007 2006
70,923,596 72,127,633
65,607 262,430
70,989,203 72,390,063

(38,974,427) (33,327,865)

32,014,776 39,062,198

Ao 1 Yo o ' a A ' s A
UsindeslahdyanisiuienigUnsaliiie

o a a ° ) ' [
15 un13 A uiiunans Tasiis e n1ssisza e 113 u

10U A AU 31 TUNAV 2550 USHNED BN L

' A v
pnUNIzAD W IoA 1T uR I daa 10158 ulu

u
4

upazilaail

A subsidiary has entered into the finance lease
agreements with leasing companies for rental of the
equipment for operation and committed to pay rental fee
on amonthly basis. As at 31 December 2007, there were
the following commitments payable under the finance

lease agreements:
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\(
MITED,
\\—_

= Y .
i A1UUIMN Year Million Baht
2551 42.6 2008 42.6
2552 235 2009 235
2553 10.2 2010 10.2
2554 0.2 2011 0.2
d"Q 4 2
14. KUAUISHSYINTUIN Hﬁuﬂ“ﬂ IMI 14. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES UNDER
REHABILITATION PLAN
' 4
v A U S a .
UIAUN 31 FUNAV 2550 LS 2549 NUTUTEEL Y1) As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the outstanding
@ o 4 dy g a . P 1y .
mevasnsdsulaseadanfiaruunuil ‘L!‘IQI_ NINIT long-term liabilities restructured under the rehabilitation
v
sznounie plan are as follows:
WY M)
(Unit: Baht)
WMIRUTIY WMIRURWIZRING
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
550 2549 2550 2549
2007 2006 2007 2006
vy v
Wwmifiduduumiiduguasasiasnamsidu
Senior creditors of loans and financial instruments :
a Y Ao o A A a o 3 '
- Nu@]ullﬂ1ﬂuﬂ“]ﬂ5$ﬂunﬂ6Lﬂﬂuﬂ?ﬂlu 10 ﬂuumum
Fuimaiimdaiuseufoumiaiga iz ozinaiaea
fszutidudu 3 7 (Fudsziudueil 2547) Tasiidasn
ponidiseaz 6 Aol vie MLR uduaeswlarzdiniy 6,000,000 8,000,000 6,000,000 8,000,000
- Principal is to be repaid in semi-annual installments within 10
years from the date the court issues its final order approving
the plan, with a grace period of 3 years (repayment as from
the year 2004). Interest is charged at the lower of 6 percent
per annum or MLR.
2 o
10: aoniiie eI o3V Weuan 477042 1,723,117 477042 1,723,117
Add : Interest expenses pending recognition in future year
wilduszozgnammuaiiuims 6,477,042 9,723,117 6,477,042 9,723,117
Long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan
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(U VM)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMIRUIIN JUMIRURMZAINIG

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2550 2549 2550 2549
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15. SHARE CAPITAL

On 4 October 2006, the Company’s Extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders passed resolutions
approving the offset of legal reserve of Baht 4.5 million
and premium on sales of assets to related company of
Baht 58.6 million with the deficit in retained earnings
and, approving the reduction of the Company’s share
capital through the following process:

- The cancellation of the 4,189,817 unissued shares
with a par value of Baht 10 per share, reducing the
registered share capital of the Company to Baht
1,424,404,890, comprising 142,440,489 shares
with a par value of Baht 10 each.

- A reduction in the Company’s registered capital to
Baht 142,440,489 (142,440,489 shares with a par
value of Baht 1 each) and paid up capital to Baht
141,944,471 (141,944,471 shares with a par value
of Baht 1 each) by reducing the par value of the
shares from Baht 10 to Baht 1, in order to
eliminate the ordinary share deficit and reduce the
retained loss.

The Company registered the above reduction of

shares with the Ministry of Commerce.
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16. COMPANY’S SHARE HELD BY SUBSIDIARY

At 31 December 2007, 230,175 shares with a par
value of Baht 1 each (2006 : 230,175 shares with a par
value of Baht 10 each) of the Company were held by
subsidiary. They are presented as a deduction in

shareholders’ equity and are stated at cost.

17. STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the Public Limited Company Act B.E.
2535, the Company is required to set aside a statutory
reserve of at least 5 percent of its net profit after
deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any)
until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered

share capital.

18. REMUNERATION FROM TRANSER OF

RIGHTS

Remuneration from transfer of rights is income
received from the transfer to a related company (as
discussed in note 6.2 to the financial statements) and
another company options to purchase certain land and
construction thereon which had been transferred to a
bank in settlement of indebtedness under a debt
restructuring agreement (the debt restructuring agreement
granted the Company the option to buy back the landand
construction thereon within one year from the date they
were transferred to the bank). The Company recorded the
related remuneration received, totaling Baht 23.2 million,
as a separate item in the income statements for the year

ended 31 December 2006.

19. GAIN ON SALES OF LONG-TERM

INVESTMENTS
On 29 September 2006, the Company sold all
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533,196 ordinary shares of its investment in Kulthorn
Premier Company Limited, to Kulthorn Kirby Public
Company Limited, at a price of Baht 46.4 million. The
Company recorded the gain of Baht 43.4 million from
the sale of this investment as a separate item in the

income statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

20. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED
COSTS

WMSRUTIN UMTRUANIZNINIG

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

o o o 2o

NUIUNUMNU Y Juﬁuﬂ (AU)

Number of employees at end of year (Persons)
mlfeneafuwinnudmsull Guum)

Employee costs for the year (Million Baht)

2550 2549 2550 2549
2007 2006 2007 2006
319 295 - -
1845 1700 - -
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21. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividingthe
net income (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after
deducting the number of shares of the Company held by

asubsidiary.

22. DIVIDEND PAID
On 26 April 2007, the Annual General Meeting of
shareholders

the Company’s passed a resolution
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approving the payment of a dividend of Baht 0.10 per

share to the Company’s shareholders from the
Company's income for the year 2006, a total of Baht 142

million. The dividend was paid in May 2007.

23. COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2007, the Company and its
subsidiary have commitments as follows:

23.1 The Company has commitment from guarantee
on the loan facility of its subsidiary totaling
approximately Baht 40 million (2006: Baht40
million) as described in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

23.2 The subsidiary has commitments of Baht 33.3
million (2006: Baht 24.0 million) in respect of
letters of guarantee issued by banks on its
behalf.

A Baht 35.5 million (2006: Baht 24.9
million) fixed bank deposits of subsidiaryhave
been pledged with banks to secure those bank
guarantees and credit facilities as described in
Note 24 to the financial statements.

23.3 The subsidiary had several long-term lease
agreements in respect of rental building, office

space and related services. Expenses which

shall be payable in the futures, are as follows:

Year Million
2008 118
2009 11.6
20102023 14.0

234 The Company and the subsidiary have entered
into management service agreements with a
related company, whereby management fees

totaling Baht 0.7 million per month are
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payable in the future, with Baht 0.2 million
per month payable by the Company. The
agreements end in December 2008 but they
automatically renew for periods of one year

each time until terminated.

dyan
235 UTHNA ﬁmix@ﬂﬁulﬁ'ﬂ?ﬁ/ﬂﬂ 1591931520 1 23.5 The Company has a commitment in respect
ﬁuﬁm’;u 17.0 S Lﬁf‘] wWnysina 1a of'the share payment amounting to Baht 170
ﬁﬁnﬁywcﬁamwﬁuﬁuﬁﬁﬂ W?Lﬁﬂfﬁ%‘ﬁl’u million, under a share purchase and sale
umfilnea $1ia Modo uaninuewitn agreement with Premier Fission Capital
ad s mes Fadud $1da 910 Company Limited whereby it agreed to
VTENAINEA1 91UIU 60,000 ﬁfu (An 11l purchase 60,000 ordinary shares of Datapro
$owaz 20 VOINUIA ﬂ%!ﬁﬂu) lusn 1ﬁ’ua ¥ Computer Systems Company Limited, or
5851 ﬁmﬂuy’a ﬂ'ﬁ’JiJﬁﬁé’u 35.1 a1U equivalent to 20 percent of its registered
UM mﬂauﬁuua ZN15919%152A 1ﬁu capital, at a price of Baht 585 per share, fora
fana1vzanInsoauiuns Idmevdein total of Baht 35.1 million. The Company and
Suntue 18 fiRawiteulvasudaumse the seller may proceed with the transfer of
wgaRuINNIsgnIian Iy o f1mua lu the shares and payment thereof when the
uwuﬁyuﬂ_mmﬁﬁwﬁﬁm%’a Qﬁullﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ seller fully complies with certain conditions
agalsfay Gluizﬁ’hﬂﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁm%@ﬂﬂ or is freed from the restrictions stipulated
2550 u’?ﬁwﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁmcﬁﬁzmﬁumdaurﬂu under a related company’s rehabilitation
FIWIUEY 18.1 a1mumnud ) plan. During the third quarter of current year,
the Company paid Baht 18.1 million for the
share purchase.
24. Nﬁu?rmé?'a 24. FACILITIES FROMFINANCIAL INSTITUTION
v3tngeslas U ud U Y Hd; 1ia19Us N NN The subsidiary has been granted various types of
aofunsSunraniiaTaodunaiuide1y 1414 credit facilities, by a financial institution of which Baht
$1001 64.8 d1u0m 2AUG o K an a1 115 T 64.8 million has not been utilized. Most of the facilities
TaoRurhn sz 151115 U NEINVOIUTENGD 8 have been guaranteed by a part of fixed deposits with
bank of the subsidiary.
25. namuﬁﬁmaém‘?w 25. PROVIDENT FUND
Viimgosuaz wiin g uiuiadane anu The subsidiary and its employees have jointly
15048 09T E A WNITEIWTYR ﬂamué’mmng N established a provident fund in accordance with the
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Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the
subsidiary contributed to the fund monthly at the rateof
5 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by
TISCO Assets Management Company Limited, will be
paid to employees upon termination in accordance with
the fund rules. During the year 2007, the subsidiary
contributed Baht 6.7 million (2006: Baht 6.3 million)to

the fund.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined
under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable, investments, and long-term loans. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments
and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The subsidiary is exposed to credit risk primarily
with respect to trade accounts receivable. The subsidiary
manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control
policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to
incur material financial losses. In addition, the subsidiary
does not have high concentration of credit risk since it
has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of

receivables as stated in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk
The Company and its subsidiary’s exposure to interest
rate risk relates primarily to their cash at banks, bank

overdrafts, factoring, long-term loans, long-term

liabilities and interest bearing liabilities under

rehabilitation plan. However, since most of the Company
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and its subsidiary’s financial assets and liabilities bear
floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are
close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected

to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2007 classified by type of interest rates are
summarized in the table below, with those financial
assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the reprising

Y £
@ ] 1 Y o . . .
dnsnendelvudenen) laael date if this occurs before the maturity date.

ons 1m0 nilonad ons1ao mile
Fixed interest rates
ety w1 1 1NN NETITS 1aid ons1
1% fas 9 59 musmAma  $as a0 it 37U Ao
Within 1-5 Over Floating Non —interest
1 year years 5 years Interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
@Euum) (Gosazaoll)
(Million Baht) % p.a.)
Funsndmamadu
Finandal Assets
Ruaauazswmiieumituda - - - 14 - 14 0.5
Cash and cash equivalent
Quamu dnsm - - - 7 - 7 2.75
Current investment
Qs &1 - - - - 397 397 -
Trade accounts recevable
Surhnanniu maduiiia sy - - - 35 - 35 2.0
Deposits at financid nstitutions with restrictions
- - - 56 397 453
whdumansiiu
Finandal liabilities
Wwiimsi 1 - - - 241 242 7.0
Trade accounts payale
WS inuaaes s 21 - - - - 21 8.1
Accountpayale -factoring company
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Long-tem loans from bank
Aufduszezemoy 4 - - 4 13.84
Other bong - tem loans
wilduszezon 39 32 - - 71 3.00 - 13.00
Long-tem liabilities
wﬁyﬁuixﬂxﬂnmuuwuﬂyuvjﬁﬂmi - - 6 - 6 me 14
Long-tem liabilities underrehabilitaton plan Note 14
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Foreign currency risk

The subsidiary’s exposure to foreign currency risk
arises mainly from trading transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies. As at 31 December
2007, the subsidiary had the net foreign currency -
denominated liabilities, amounting to USD 0.7 million
(2006: USD 1.9 million) which had not been hedged
against foreign exchange rate risk.

26.2 Fair values of financial instruments

As the majority of financial assets are short-term and
long-term financial liabilities carry interest rates which
close to or lower than market rates, the management of
the Company and its subsidiary believe that fair valueof
their financial assets and liabilities does not materially
differ from their carrying value.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be
exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair
value is determined by reference to the market price of
the financial instrument or by using an appropriate
valuation technique, depending on the nature of the

instrument.
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27. M3EUOVBYANINS FUSWUAMINAINIY 27. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT
VTENIUazUT ENgo o uHUN NS TN d I U UNIS The Company and its subsidiary’s operations
ganuReInoginuna Tuladuazensauna uaza iy involve a single industry segment, information and
‘I;iﬁﬂiuﬁ)uﬂ1uﬂﬁﬂﬂ1ﬁgﬁﬂ1ﬁﬂi"’!ﬁﬂ’lﬁ’E] Tudszine communications technology, and are carried on in the
e ﬁlﬂﬁlui”lﬁlhlﬁ i'ls (V19aNU) HaZaUNSN 5‘17?@‘H3J f ‘171 single geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of the
wanalusunsiuianeade sfudiunugsfa s dau revenues, operating income (loss) and assets reflected in
i1u%13qﬁﬁ1ﬁﬁ{ﬁ1uﬁﬂ5131% these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned
industry segment and geographic area.
28. MIOUNAIUMI QU 28. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNIT ﬁuﬁ“lﬁjﬁyﬂ@ uﬁmﬁmmm SUINAULATINAT These financial statements were authorized for issue
Yo WS Enaud e Juii 20 AUAWUS 2551 by the Company’s Board of Directors on 20 February
2008.
ARBUNNUVRIH oD T Audit Fee
1. MeeuN UMD MIaeUTyFiiayd (Audit Fee) 1. Audit Fee
VTN VT ENGDITIBAMDVUNUN 15 A VT Y F The Company and its subsidiary paid audit fee as
Aiun follows:
- faeulyFueswiim lusevuil iy TR LTtREY - The Company’s auditor for the year 2007 in an
FIVIURUTIN 0 VN amount Baht 0
- dinnuae Uﬁm%ﬁé}ﬁﬂ ‘U‘fl/fgé]dj dana ynaa - Auditor’s firm for the year 2007 in an amount of
w?aﬁﬁ]ﬂﬁﬁﬁm%’mﬁuﬁﬁauﬁmGTm,a ¢ d111n Baht 950,000
nuaevtiyFigae uiaFdata Tuse uiliyd
Fruniisnuitus g 950,000 1M
2. AN3MIOYU (Non-Audit Fee) 2. Non-Audit Fee
-aigi- -None -
511531l 2550 116 Annual Repott 2007
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